

Newer Cisco SBA Guides Available

This guide is part of an older series of Cisco Smart Business Architecture designs. To access the latest Cisco SBA Guides, go to http://www.cisco.com/go/sba

Cisco strives to update and enhance SBA guides on a regular basis. As we develop a new series of SBA guides, we test them together, as a complete system. To ensure the mutual compatibility of designs in Cisco SBA guides, you should use guides that belong to the same series.



BYOD

SOLUTIONS

P P I

1111111

CISCO

SBA

BYOD—Virtual Desktop Access Deployment Guide

SMART BUSINESS ARCHITECTURE

August 2012 Series

Preface

Who Should Read This Guide

This Cisco® Smart Business Architecture (SBA) guide is for people who fill a variety of roles:

- Systems engineers who need standard procedures for implementing solutions
- Project managers who create statements of work for Cisco SBA implementations
- Sales partners who sell new technology or who create implementation
 documentation
- Trainers who need material for classroom instruction or on-the-job training

In general, you can also use Cisco SBA guides to improve consistency among engineers and deployments, as well as to improve scoping and costing of deployment jobs.

Release Series

Cisco strives to update and enhance SBA guides on a regular basis. As we develop a series of SBA guides, we test them together, as a complete system. To ensure the mutual compatibility of designs in Cisco SBA guides, you should use guides that belong to the same series.

The Release Notes for a series provides a summary of additions and changes made in the series.

All Cisco SBA guides include the series name on the cover and at the bottom left of each page. We name the series for the month and year that we release them, as follows:

month year Series

For example, the series of guides that we released in August 2012 are the "August 2012 Series".

You can find the most recent series of SBA guides at the following sites:

Customer access: http://www.cisco.com/go/sba

Partner access: http://www.cisco.com/go/sbachannel

How to Read Commands

Many Cisco SBA guides provide specific details about how to configure Cisco network devices that run Cisco IOS, Cisco NX-OS, or other operating systems that you configure at a command-line interface (CLI). This section describes the conventions used to specify commands that you must enter.

Commands to enter at a CLI appear as follows:

configure terminal

Commands that specify a value for a variable appear as follows:

ntp server 10.10.48.17

Commands with variables that you must define appear as follows:

class-map [highest class name]

Commands shown in an interactive example, such as a script or when the command prompt is included, appear as follows:

Router# enable

Long commands that line wrap are underlined. Enter them as one command:

wrr-queue random-detect max-threshold 1 100 100 100 100 100

100 100 100

Noteworthy parts of system output or device configuration files appear highlighted, as follows:

interface Vlan64

ip address 10.5.204.5 255.255.255.0

Comments and Questions

If you would like to comment on a guide or ask questions, please use the SBA feedback form.

If you would like to be notified when new comments are posted, an RSS feed is available from the SBA customer and partner pages.

August 2012 Series

Table of Contents

What's In This SBA Guide	 1
Cisco SBA Solutions	 1
Route to Success	 1
About This Guide	 1
Introduction	 2
Business Overview	 2
Technology Overview	 3

Deployment Details	4
Deploying Cisco Identity Services Engine	4
Enabling Visibility to the Wireless Network	11
Enabling Authorization	16
Enable device provisioning	21
Deploying Digital Certificates	21
Configuring Self-Provisioning	32
Monitoring Network Access	51
Appendix A: Product List	58

What's In This SBA Guide

Cisco SBA Solutions

Cisco SBA helps you design and quickly deploy a full-service business network. A Cisco SBA deployment is prescriptive, out-of-the-box, scalable, and flexible.

Cisco SBA incorporates LAN, WAN, wireless, security, data center, application optimization, and unified communication technologies—tested together as a complete system. This component-level approach simplifies system integration of multiple technologies, allowing you to select solutions that solve your organization's problems—without worrying about the technical complexity.

Cisco SBA Solutions are designs for specific problems found within the most common technology trends. Often, Cisco SBA addresses more than one use case per solution because customers adopt new trends differently and deploy new technology based upon their needs.

Route to Success

To ensure your success when implementing the designs in this guide, you should first read any guides that this guide depends upon—shown to the left of this guide on the route below. As you read this guide, specific prerequisites are cited where they are applicable.

About This Guide

This *deployment guide* contains one or more deployment chapters, which each include the following sections:

- Business Overview—Describes the business use case for the design. Business decision makers may find this section especially useful.
- Technology Overview—Describes the technical design for the business use case, including an introduction to the Cisco products that make up the design. Technical decision makers can use this section to understand how the design works.
- **Deployment Details**—Provides step-by-step instructions for deploying and configuring the design. Systems engineers can use this section to get the design up and running quickly and reliably.

You can find the most recent series of Cisco SBA guides at the following sites:

Customer access: http://www.cisco.com/go/sba

Partner access: http://www.cisco.com/go/sbachannel



Introduction

There is a trend in the marketplace today that is often referred to as *Bring Your Own Device* (BYOD). BYOD is a spectrum of business problems that can be solved in various ways. These range from accessing guest wireless networks to providing device authentication and identification. The goal is to provide a common work environment, regardless of the type of device being used. This could be accomplished by providing a virtualized desktop or by allowing users to self-register devices for use on the network.

Organizations are experiencing an unprecedented transformation in the network landscape. In the past, IT typically provided network resources only to corporate-managed PCs, such as laptops and desktops. Today, employees are requiring access from both corporate managed and unmanaged devices, including mobile devices like smart phones and tablets. This rapid proliferation of mobile devices capable of supporting applications drastically increases workforce mobility and productivity, but it also presents an enormous challenge to IT organizations seeking to enforce security policies across a growing population of devices, operating systems, and connectivity profiles.

The distinction between a work device and a personal device has evolved. This evolution of mobile device usage and the introduction of mobile devices into the workplace has caused a paradigm shift in how IT views what qualifies as a network "end point device" and also what it means to "be at work."

An organization needs to know not only who is accessing their wired and wireless networks, but also when the networks are accessed and from where. In addition, with the wide adoption of nontraditional devices, such as smart phones and tablets, and people bringing their own devices to access the network, organizations need to know how many of these devices are connecting. With this information, the organization can create policy to prevent connection by nontraditional devices, limit connection to approved devices, or make access to network resources easier for these non-traditional devices. This presents a challenge for IT organizations that seek to provide end-users with a consistent network access experience and the freedom to use any device, while still enforcing stringent security policies to protect corporate intellectual property. Further complicating the situation

is delivering both consistent access and enforcing proper security policy based on the specific user-access scenario (wired, wireless, guest, local, branch, and remote users).

To balance the productivity gains versus the security risks, IT needs to implement a solution that allows for seamless on-boarding of users and devices, simplicity of on-going operations, and the ability to extend end-user applications to any user or any device at any time.

Other Cisco SBA Solutions guides addressing BYOD business problems include:

- · BYOD—Internal Corporate Access Deployment Guide
- BYOD—Identity and Authentication Deployment Guide
- · BYOD—Advanced Guest Wireless Access Deployment Guide
- · BYOD—Remote Mobile Access Deployment Guide

Business Overview

Organizations are being driven by industry and regulatory compliance (PCI, Sarbanes-Oxley, HIPAA) to be able to report on who is accessing the organization's information, where they are accessing it from, and what type of device they are using to access it. Government mandates like Federal Information Processing Standard (FIPS) and Federal Information Security Management Act (FISMA) are also requiring agencies and entities working with government agencies to track this information. In some cases, an organization may choose to limit access to certain information to adhere to these regulations.

This information is also key data that can be used to generate advanced security policies. Organizations see this as a daunting task requiring the use of several advanced technologies and often delay implementing a solution simply because they don't know where to begin.

This guide is the first step in deploying an architecture for accommodating users who bring their own devices to access the network. The first phase is to allow users to access the network with their personal device using their existing network credentials. After authentication, the device is granted access to the portions of the network required to access the Virtual Desktop Infrastructure (VDI). VDI allows a client to access a virtual desktop hosted in the data center. This allows the user to access the same desktop from a variety of different endpoints. This simplifies network policies by providing a common environment for users and then applying policy centrally in the data center. This guide assumes that the VDI environment has already been installed in the data center and the clients are configured. The second phase is to provision the device with a digital certificate and network configuration prior to gaining network access. Once provisioned, the device has full network access. Future projects will address additional use cases that focus on features that provide for things like device management and Security Group Access (SGA).

Technology Overview

Cisco Identity Services Engine (ISE) is an identity and access control policy platform that enables enterprises to enforce compliance, enhance infrastructure security, and streamline their service operations. Cisco ISE is a core component of Cisco TrustSec. Its architecture allows an organization to gather real-time contextual information from the network, users, and devices. This information helps IT professionals make proactive policy decisions by tying identity into network elements like access switches, wireless controllers, and VPN gateways.

This deployment uses Cisco ISE as the authentication, authorization, and accounting server for wireless network users who connect using RADIUS. Cisco ISE acts as a proxy to the existing Active Directory (AD) services to maintain a centralized identity store for all network services.

In addition to using Cisco ISE for authentication, you can use Cisco ISE to profile devices to determine the specific type of devices that are accessing the network. This is done by examining network traffic for certain criteria based on certain characteristics. Cisco ISE currently has probes for Dynamic Host Configuration Protocol (DHCP), HTTP, RADIUS, Domain Name System (DNS), Simple Network Management Protocol (SNMP) traps and queries, Nmap scans, and Netflow. To analyze the traffic, the engine can be deployed as an inline policy enforcement device or the traffic can be forwarded to the engine. As an example, the network infrastructure is configured to send DHCP and Cisco Discovery Protocol (CDP) data via RADIUS to Cisco ISE for analysis. The engine then evaluates the data sent via RADIUS and can identify the device based off of the data in the RADIUS packet. For example, Cisco IP phones are identified by a DHCP class identifier.

You integrate Cisco ISE into the wireless network by using Cisco ISE as the AAA server for wireless 802.1X authentication, authorization, and accounting. You configure this on every wireless LAN controller (WLC) in the network, at both headquarters and the remote sites that have local controllers. The one exception is for the controller used for guest access.

Figure 1 - BYOD overview



Deployment Details

The deployment described here bases all IP addressing off of the *Cisco SBA—Borderless Networks LAN Deployment Guide*. Any IP addresses used in this guide are examples; you should use addressing that is applicable to your architecture.

Cisco ISE has different personas, or modes, for which it can be configured: administration, policy service, and monitoring. For a standalone configuration where the appliance is all personas, the maximum number of endpoints that can be supported is 2000. To support a greater number of endpoints, you need to divide the personas across multiple appliances. In this example, there is a primary and secondary policy service and administration node, and a primary and secondary monitoring node. This allows the deployment to scale to 10,000 endpoints. If your deployment does not require support for more than 2000 endpoints, then you can just have a primary and secondary set of engines that support all the personas.

Table 1 - Cisco ISE engine IP addresses and host names

Device	IP address	Host name
Primary Cisco ISE administration and policy service node	10.4.48.41	ise-1.cisco.local
Secondary Cisco ISE administration and policy service node	10.4.48.42	ise-2.cisco.local
Primary Cisco ISE monitoring node	10.4.48.43	ise-3.cisco.local
Secondary Cisco ISE monitoring node	10.4.48.44	ise-4.cisco.local

Process

Deploying Cisco Identity Services Engine

- 1. Set up initial primary engine
- 2. Set up the remaining engines
- 3. Configure certificate trust list
- 4. Configure Cisco ISE deployment nodes
- 5. Install Cisco ISE license
- 6. Configure network devices in Cisco ISE
- 7. Configure Cisco ISE to use Active Directory
- 8. Disable IP Phone authorization policy

Procedure 1

Set up initial primary engine

Step 1: Boot the Cisco ISE and then, at the initial prompt, enter **setup.** The installation begins.

Step 2: Enter the host name, IP address, subnet mask, and default router of the engine.

Enter hostname[]: ise-1
Enter IP address[]: 10.4.48.41
Enter IP default netmask[]: 255.255.255.0
Enter IP default gateway[]: 10.4.48.1

Step 3: Enter DNS information.

Enter default DNS domain[]: cisco.local Enter primary nameserver[]: 10.4.48.10 Add/Edit another nameserver? Y/N : n

Step 4: Configure time.

Enter primary NTP server[time.nist.gov]: ntp.cisco.local
Add/Edit secondary NTP server? Y/N : n
Enter system timezone[UTC]: PST8PDT



Tech Tip

Time zone abbreviations can be found in the *Cisco Identity* Services Engine CLI Reference Guide, Release 1.1.x:

http://www.cisco.com/en/US/docs/security/ise/1.1/cli_ref_guide/ ise_cli_app_a.html#wp1571855

Step 5: Configure an administrator account.

You must configure an administrator account in order to access to the CLI console. This account is not the same as the one used to access the GUI.

```
Enter username[admin]: admin
Enter password: [password]
Enter password again: [password]
```

Cisco ISE completes the installation and reboots. This process takes several minutes. You are asked to enter a new database administrator password and a new database user password during the provisioning of the internal database. Do not press **Control-C** during the installation, or the installation ends.



The primary engine is now installed.

Procedure 2

Set up the remaining engines

Step 1: The procedure for setting up the remaining engines is the same as when setting up the primary engine, with the only difference being the IP address and host name configured for the engine. To set up the remaining engines, follow Procedure 1 and use the values supplied in Table 1 for the remaining engines.

Procedure 3

Configure certificate trust list

The engines use public key infrastructure (PKI) to secure communications between them. Initially in this deployment, you use local certificates, and you must configure a trust relationship between all of the engines. To do this, you need to import the local certificates from the secondary administration node and the two monitoring nodes into the primary administration node.

Step 1: In your browser, connect to the secondary engine's GUI at http:// ise-2.cisco.local.

Step 2: In Administration > System, select Certificates.

Step 3: In the Local Certificates window, select the local certificate by checking the box next to the name of the secondary engine, ise-2.cisco. local, and then click Export.

Step 4: Choose Export Certificate Only, and then click Export.

Step 5: When the browser prompts you to save the file to a location on the local machine, choose where to store the file and make a note of it. You will be importing this file into the primary engine.

Step 6: In a browser, access the primary engine's GUI at http://ise-1.cisco. local.

Step 7: In Administration > System, select Certificates.

Step 8: In the Certificate Operations pane on the left, click **Certificate Store,** and then click **Add**.

Step 9: Next to the **Certificate File** box, click **Browse**, and then locate the certificate exported from the secondary engine. It has an extension of .pem. Click **Submit**.

Step 10: Repeat this procedure for the remaining engines, ise-3.cisco.local and ise-4.cisco.local.

Procedure 4

Configure Cisco ISE deployment nodes

You can configure the personas of Cisco ISE—administration, monitoring, and policy service—to run all on a single engine or to be distributed amongst several engines. For this example installation, you deploy a pair of engines for administration and policy service with one serving as primary and the other secondary and another pair of engines for monitoring with one serving as primary and the other secondary.

Step 1: Connect to http://ise-1.cisco.local.

Step 2: From the **Administration** menu, choose **System**, and then choose **Deployment**. A message appears notifying you that the node is currently stand-alone. Click **OK**.

cisco Identity Services Engine		This node is in Standalone mode. To register other nodes, you must first with this node and change its	Feedback
		strati Administration Role to Primary Po Task Navigator	• 🕗
😽 System 🛛 👰 Identity Managemen	t 🔳	Netv CK	
Deployment Licensing Certificates	Loggin	g Maintenance Admin Access Settings	
	Loggin	g Mantehance Alamn Access Settings	
Deployment			
Deployment	Loggin	Deployment Nodes	-
Deployment		Deployment Nodes	

Step 3: In the Deployment pane, click the gear icon, and then select Create Node Group.

In order for the two Cisco ISE devices to share policy and state information, they must be in a node group. The nodes use IP multicast to distribute this information, so they need to be able to communicate via IP multicast.

cisco Identity Services Engine				ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻	Administration 🔻			😬 Task Navigator 👻 🕙
🔆 System 🦉 Identity Management	🔛 Network Resources 🛛 🛃	Guest Management		
Deployment Licensing Certificates	Logging Maintenance Admir	Access Settings		
Deployment	Deployment Nodes			Selected 0 Total 1 🔗 🎡 🖕
P = = = P = ployment	Create Node Group	🚱 Export 🛛 🚯 Import	≫ Show All	- 6
	Hostname	 Node Type 	Personas	Role(s)
	ise-1	ISE	Administration, Monitoring, Policy	/ Service STANDALONE

Step 4: Configure the node group with the node group name **ISE-Group** and the default multicast address of **228.10.11.12**, and then click **Submit**.

Step 5: A pop-up window lets you know the group was created successfully. Click **OK**.

Step 6: In the Deployment pane on the left, expand **Deployment**. A list of the current deployment nodes appears.

Step 7: Click ise-1. This enables you to configure this deployment node.

Step 8: On the General Settings tab, in the Personas section, next to the Administration Role, click **Make Primary**.

Step 9: In the Include Node in Node Group list, choose ISE-Group.



Next, configure which methods are used to profile network endpoints.

Step 10: On the Profiling Configuration tab, select **RADIUS**, use the default parameters, and then click **Save**.

V	▼ RADIUS	
	Description RADIUS	

Step 11: In the Edit Node window, click **Deployment Nodes List**. The Deployment Nodes window appears.

Step 12: Click Register, and then choose Register an ISE Node.



Step 13: Enter the IP address or host name of the primary monitoring Cisco ISE engine from Table 1 (in this example, ise-3.cisco.local) and the credentials for the admin account, and then click **Next**.

Step 14: Select Monitoring, and then in the Role list, choose Primary. Make sure Administration and Policy Service are not selected.

Step 15: Click **Submit**. The node registers, and a pop-up window displays letting you know that the process was successful. Click **OK**.

cisco Identity Services Engine		ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
🍐 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Adm	inistration 🔻	👓 Task Navigator 👻 🕗
🔆 System 🏾 👰 Identity Management	Network Resources 🛛 🛃 Web Portal Management	
Deployment Licensing Certificates Log	iging Maintenance Admin Access Settings	
Deployment	Deployment Nodes List > Configure Node	
	Register ISE Node - Step 2: Configure Node	
	General Settings Hostname Ise-3 FQDN Ise-3.cisco.local IP Address 10.4.48.43 Node Type Identity Services Engine (ISE)	
	Personas Administration Role SECONDARY	
	Role PRIMARY Other Monitoring Node Re-1 Policy Service Enable Services Include Node in Node Group <none> # O Enable Profiling Service Submit Cance</none>	

Step 16: In the Deployment Node window, click ise-1.

Step 17: Clear Monitoring, and then click Save. The node updates, and a message displays letting you know that the process was successful. Click OK. The node restarts.

ultulu. CISCO Identity Services Engine	ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Administration 🔻	🕫 Task Navigator 👻 😢
🔆 System 🛛 👰 Identity Management 🛛 🚆 Network Resources 🛛 🛃 Web Portal Management	
Deployment Licensing Certificates Logging Maintenance Admin Access Settings	
Deployment ↓ ↓ Deployment ↓ ↓ Deployment Edit Node	
General Settings Profiling Configuration	
Hostname ise-1 FQCM ise-1.cisco.local IP Address 10,4,48,41	
Node Type Identity Services I Personas	ngine (ISE)
✓ Administration Role	PRIMARY
Monitoring Role	SECONDARY Other Monitoring Node
✓ Policy Service	
✓ Enable Session Services ① Include Node in Node Group	ISE-Group •
C Enable Profiling Service	
Save Reset	

Step 18: Log in to the console, and then in the **Administration** menu, in the System section, choose **Deployment**.

Step 19: In the Deployment Node window, click **Register**, and then choose **Register an ISE Node**.

Step 20: Enter the IP address or host name of the secondary administration Cisco ISE from Table 1 (in this example, ise-2.cisco.local) and the credentials for the admin account, and then click **Next**.

Step 21: Select Administration and Policy Service.

Step 22: In the Administration section, in the **Role** list, choose **Secondary**, and then in the Policy Service section, in the **Node Group** list, choose **ISE-Group**.

Step 23: Click **Submit**. The node registers, and a pop-up window displays letting you know that the process was successful. Click **OK**.

cisco Identity Services Engine	ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
	ration 🔻 😐 😶 Task Navigator 👻 🕗
😽 System 🛛 🖉 Identity Management 🛛 🗑 N	etwork Resources 🛛 🛃 Web Portal Management
Deployment Licensing Certificates Logging	Maintenance Admin Access Settings
Deployment	Deployment Nodes Litt > Configure Node
N = := 14*	Register ISE Node - Step 2: Configure Node
Menter State St	
	General Settings
	Hostname Ise-2
	FQDV ise-2.cisco.local
	IP Address 10.4.48.42
	Node Type Identity Services Engine (ISE)
	hous type Identity Services Engine (ISE)
	Personas
	Administration Role SECONDARY
•	Manitoring Role SECONDARY Other Manitoring Node
	✓ Policy Service
	✓ Enable Session Services Include Node in Node Group ISE-Group ▼ ①
	C Enable Profiling Service
	Submit Cancel

Step 24: Next, configure which methods are used to profile network endpoints for the secondary policy service node.

Step 25: In the Deployment Nodes list, choose ise-2.

Step 26: On the Profiling Configuration tab, select **RADIUS**, use the default parameters, and then click **Save**.

~	▼ RADIUS		
		Description RADIUS	

Step 27: In the Edit Node window, click **Deployment Nodes List**. The Deployment Nodes window appears.

Step 28: In the Deployment Nodes window, click **Register**, and then choose **Register an ISE Node**.

Step 29: Enter the IP address or host name of the secondary monitoring Cisco ISE from Table 1 (in this example, ise-4.cisco.local) and the credentials for the admin account, and then click **Next**.

Step 30: Select **Monitoring**, and then in the **Role** list, choose **Secondary**. Make sure **Administration** and **Policy Service** are not selected.

Step 31: Click **Submit**. The node registers, and a pop-up window displays letting you know that the process was successful. Click **OK**.

cisco Identity Services Engine		ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
💧 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 💌 Adminis	tration 🔻	👓 Task Navigator 👻 🚷
🔆 System 🖉 Identity Management	Network Resources 🛛 🛃 Web Portal Management	
Deployment Licensing Certificates Loggin	g Maintenance Admin Access Settings	
Deployment	Deployment Nodes List > Configure Node	
♦• ■ 🔳 🚳•	Register ISE Node - Step 2: Configure Node	
	General Settings Hostname ise-4 FQDN ise-4.disco.docal IP Address 10.4.48.44 Node Type Identity Services Engine (15E)	
	Personas	
4 8	Administration Role SECONDARY	
4 8	Monitoring Role SECONDARY Other Monitoring Node ise-3	3
	Policy Service	
	Enable Session Services Include Node in Node Group <none> * ① Enable Profilma Service</none>	
	Submit Cancel	

You have now deployed all Cisco ISE nodes: a pair of redundant administration and policy service nodes and a pair of redundant monitoring nodes.

Procedure 5

Install Cisco ISE license

Cisco ISE comes with a 90-day demo license for both the Base and Advanced packages. To go beyond 90 days, you need to obtain a license from Cisco. In a redundant configuration, you only need to install the license on the primary administration node.



Tech Tip

When installing a Base license and an Advanced license, the Base license must be installed first.

Step 1: Mouse over **Administration**, and then, from the System section of the menu, choose **Licensing**.

Notice that you only see one node here since only the primary administration node requires licensing.

Step 2: Click the name of the Cisco ISE server. This enables you to edit the license details.

Step 3: Under Licensed Services, click Add Service.

Step 4: Click Browse, locate your license file, and then click Import.

CISCO Identity Services Engine		ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻	Administration 💌	👓 Task Navigator 👻 🕗
😽 System 🛛 😤 Identity Management	Network Resources 🏨 Guest Management	
Deployment Ucensing Certificates	Logging Maintenance Admin Access Settings	
License Operations	Const Lesses - In-1 Import new License File * License File CODownload/Nie-base-license lic Bowne	
	Emport Cancel	

If you have multiple licenses to install, repeat the process for each.

Procedure 6

Configure network devices in Cisco ISE

Configure Cisco ISE to accept authentication requests from network devices. RADIUS requires a shared secret key to enable encrypted communications. Each network device that will use Cisco ISE for authentication needs to have this key.

Step 1: Mouse over **Administration**, and then, from the Network Resources section of the menu, choose **Network Devices**.

Step 2: In the left pane, click Default Device.



Each network device can be configured individually, or devices can be grouped by location, by device type, or by using IP address ranges. The other option is to use the Default Device to configure the parameters for devices that aren't specifically configured. All network devices in this example have to use the same key, so for simplicity, this example uses the Default Device.

Step 3: In the Default Network Device Status list, choose Enable.

Step 4: Enter the RADIUS shared secret, and then click Save.



Procedure 7

Configure Cisco ISE to use Active Directory

Cisco ISE uses the existing Active Directory (AD) server as an external authentication server. First, you must configure the external authentication server.

Step 1: Mouse over **Administration**, and then, from the Identity Management section of the menu, choose **External Identity Sources**.

Step 2: In the left panel, click Active Directory.

Step 3: On the Connection tab, enter the AD domain (for example, cisco. local) and the name of the server (for example, AD1), and then click **Save Configuration**.

Step 4: Verify these settings by selecting the box next to the node, clicking Test Connection, and then choosing Basic Test.

Step 5: Enter the credentials for a domain user, and then click OK.

🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy	🔹 🔹 Adminis	tration 🔻	😝 Task Navigator 👻 🧲
🔆 System 🛛 🌺 Identity Managen	nent 📰 N	etwork Resources 🛛 🛃 Guest Management	
dentities Groups External Ider	tity Sources	Identity Source Sequences Settings	
External Identity Sources		Adve Directory > AD1 Connection Advanced Settings Groups Attributes	
Certificate Authentication Profile	•	* Domain Name cisco.local	
Active Directory		* Identity Store Name AD1	
LDAP	۲	One or more nodes may be selected for Join or Leave operations. If a node is join	d then a leave
RADIUS Token	۲	operation is required before a rejoin. Select one node for Test Connection.	
RSA SecurID	۲	9월 Join 9월 Leave 9월 Test Connection ▼	
		ISE Test Connection X ode Role Status	
		Ise * User Name: employee1 ARY 🛆 Not Joined to	Domain
		Ise * Password: Password: NDARY M Not Joined to CK Cancel	Domain

Step 6: A message appears letting you know whether or not the test was successful. Click **Close**.

Step 7: Select the box next each node, and then click Join.

Step 8: Enter the credentials for a domain administrator account. Cisco ISE is now joined to the AD domain.

cisco Identity Services Engine		ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
💧 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Admini	stration 🔻	🐽 Task Navigator 👻 🚱
🔆 System 🛛 🖉 Identity Management 🛛 🔛 N	etwork Resources 🛛 🛃 Guest Management	
Identities Groups External Identity Sources	Identity Source Sequences Settings	
External Identity Sources	Advanced Settings Groups Attributes * Domain Name csc. local - • Identity Store Name (ADL) - a dott of the set of the set of the set of the set of the not beave operations. If a node is joine operation is required before a rejoin. Sete of one of the Test Connection. © Die (Die Demain Carescon) - Bit Die Demain Carescon) I Bit Die Demain Carescon - Def Role Status I Bit Vuer Name (Administrator - Def Role Status	Domain
	VDARY AN Not Joined to	Domain

Next, you select which groups from AD that Cisco ISE will use for authentication.

Step 9: Click the Groups tab, click Add, and then click Select Groups from Directory.

Step 10: Search for the groups you wish to add. The domain box is already filled in. The default filter is a wildcard to list all groups. Click **Retrieve Groups** to get a list of all groups in your domain.

Step 11: Select the groups you want to use for authentication, and then click OK. For example, for all users in the domain, select the group <domain>/ Users/Domain Users. In this example deployment, you add the groups for cisco.local/Users/Finance, cisco.local/Users/HR, cisco.local/Users/IT, and cisco.local/Users/Research.

Home Operations •	Select Directory Groups X This dialog is used to select groups from the Directory, Click Retrieve Groups to read directory, 11	idmin Logout Feedback Task Navigator 👻 📀
System Mail Identity Mail Identities Groups External External Identity Sources External Sources		
Certificate Authentication Profile Active Directory	cisco.loca/Users/DHCP Users cisco.loca/Users/DHCP Users	
ADJUS Token		
	cisco.loca/USers/Domain Computers cisco.loca/USers/Domain Controllers cisco.loca/USers/Domain Guests	
	cisco.loca/Users/Domain Users cisco.loca/Users/Enterprise Admins cisco.loca/Users/Enterprise Read-only Domain Controllers	
	CK Cancel	

Step 12: Click Save Configuration.

Procedure 8

Disable IP Phone authorization policy

There is a default policy in place for Cisco IP Phones that have been profiled. This profile applies a downloadable access list on the port to which the phone is connected. Since there is no policy enforcement taking place at this point, this rule should be disabled.

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over Policy, and then click Authorization.

Step 2: For the Profiled Cisco IP Phones rule, click Edit, click the green check mark icon, choose Disabled, click Done, and then click Save.

👌 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻	Administration 🔻	••• Task Na	Nyatur 🔫 🕜
Authentication Authorization	Roffing Rosture D Client Provisioning	Security Group Access 💦 🐥 Policy Elemen	ts
uthorization Policy			
	es based on identity groups and/or other conditions. Drag and dro	o rules to change the order.	
irst Matched Rule Applies			
rst Matched Rule Apples *			
Exceptions (0)			
Standard			
	Conditions (identity groups and other conditions)	Permissions	
Standard Status Rule Name	Conditions (identity groups and other conditions) if Blacklist	Permissions then Blackist_Access	Edit •
Standard Status Rule Name	if Blacklist	then Blacklist_Access	Edit • Done
Standard Status Rule Name Black List Default	if Blacklist	then Blacklist_Access	

Process

Enabling Visibility to the Wireless Network

- 1. Configure 802.1X for wireless endpoints
- 2. Disable EAP-TLS on Cisco ISE
- 3. Add ISE as RADIUS authentication server
- 4. Add ISE as RADIUS accounting server
- 5. Enable DHCP profiling

To authenticate wireless clients, you need to configure the wireless LAN controllers (WLC) to use the new Cisco ISE servers as RADIUS servers for authentication and accounting. The existing entry is disabled so that if there are any issues after moving to Cisco ISE, you can quickly restore the original configuration. Additionally, you configure the WLCs for DHCP profiling so that profiling information can be obtained from the DHCP requests from these clients and sent to the Cisco ISE.

Procedure 1

Configure 802.1X for wireless endpoints

To differentiate wireless users in the authentication logs, create a rule to identify when wireless users authenticate.

Step 1: Navigate to **Policy > Authentication** to open the Authentication Policy page.

Step 2: For the Default Rule, click the **Actions** button, and then choose **Insert new row above**. A new rule, Standard Policy 1, is created.

Step 3: Rename Standard Policy 1 to Wireless-Dot1X. In the Condition(s) box, click the + symbol, and then choose Select Existing Condition from Library.

Step 4: In the Select Condition list, next to Compound Condition, click the > symbol.

Identity Services Engine A Home Operations • Policy • Administration • Authentication • Authentication •	Dictionaries	Froup Access	ise-1 admin Logout Feedback 😶 Task Navigator 🕶 🕑
Authentication Policy Define the Authentication Policy by selecting the protocols that ISE should use to of Policy Type Simple Rule-Based Writed_MAB Writed_MAB Writed_MAB Writed_0021X Writed_0021X Condition(s) Condition (s) Select Condition (s) Select Cond		d the identity sources that it should us if ault Netwo and , fault Netwo and , is o and ,	e for authentication.

Step 5: Choose Wireless_802.1X, and then click anywhere to continue.



Step 6: In the Select Network Access list, next to Allowed Protocols, click the > symbol, and then select Default Network Access.

🏠 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻	Administration 🔻				👓 Task Navigator 🤊
🛃 Authentication 🛛 🧔 Authorization	🔀 Profiling 🛛 💇 Posture	Client Provisioning	🚊 Security Group Access	Policy Elements	
uthentication Policy					
efine the Authentication Policy by selecting th olicy Type O Simple Rule-Based	ne protocols that ISE should use	to communicate with the ne	work devices, and the identity s	ources that it should use	for authentication.
MAB	: If VVired_MAB	🗇 allow protocols 🗐	ved Protocol : Default Netwo	and	🖗 Actions 👻
Wired-Dot1X	: If Vired_802.1X	allow protocols Allow	ved Protocol : Default Netwo	and	🖗 Actions 👻
					e0a
Wireless-Dot1X	: If Wireless_802.1X	allow protocols Sele	ct Network Access	and	🙀 Actions 🔻
Wireless-Dot1X Default Rule (If no match)	: If Wireless_802.1X				

Step 7: For the **Wireless-Dot1X** rule, to the right of **and...**, click the black triangle. This displays the identity store used for this rule.

Step 8: Next to Set Identity Source, click the + symbol.

Step 9: In the **Identity Source** list, choose the previously defined AD server, for example, AD1.

Step 10: Use the default options for this identity source, continue by clicking anywhere in the window, and then click **Save**.

Authentication Nole: Authentication Policy Wefne the Authentication Policy by selecting the protocols that i Color Type O Single O Nule-Based Color MaB : If Wired Wred-Dot1X : If Wired Wred-Dot1X : If Wired Wredes-Dot1X : If Wired	If process failed room + Note: For authenticatons using PEAP, LEAP, EAP-FAST or RADIUS MSCHAP it is not possible to continue processing when authentication fails or user is not found. If continue option is selected in these cases, requests will be rejected.	se for authentication.
Default : use	Internal Users 🗢	Actions *

Procedure 2

Disable EAP-TLS on Cisco ISE

For wireless deployments that aren't currently using digital certificates, you need to disable EAP-TLS in order to allow clients to log in. You will be deploying digital certificates in a later phase of this deployment.

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over **Policy**, and then, from the Policy Elements section of the menu, choose **Results**.

Step 2: In the left pane, double-click Authentication. This expands the options.

Step 3: Double-click Allowed Protocols, and then select Default Network Access.

Step 4: Clear the global **Allow EAP-TLS** check box and under the PEAP settings, clear the **Allow EAP-TLS** check box, and then click **Save**.

cisco Identity Services Engine	ise-1 admin Logout Fer	edback
🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Adr	ninistration 🔻 😽 😽 😽 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸	2
🛓 Authentication 🛛 💩 Authorization 🔀	Profiling 👩 Posture 🕞 Client Provisioning 🚊 Security Group Access 🦓 Policy Elements	
Dictionaries Conditions Results		
Results	 Detect PAP as Host Lookup Allow CHAP Allow MS-CHAPv1 Allow MS-CHAPv2 Allow EAP-MD5 Detect EAP-MD5 as Host Lookup Allow EAP-MD5 Petect EAP-MD5 as Host Lookup Allow EAP-MD5 Petect EAP-Ta9 Allow EAP-MD5 Peter Inner Methods Allow FAP-MS-CHAPv2 Allow FAP-MS-CHAPv2 Allow FAP-MS-CHAPv2 Allow FAP-MS-CHAPv2 Allow FAP-MS-CHAPv2 Allow FAP-MS-CHAPv2 Allow FAP-Ta3 Allow FAP-FAST EAP-FAST Inner Methods Allow FAP-MS-CHAPv2 Allow FAP-GTC Wallow FAR-MS-CHAPv2 Allow FAP-MS-CHAPv2 Allow FAP-MS-CHAPv2 Allow FAP-MS-CHAPv2 Allow FAP-MS-CHAPv2 Allow FAR-MS-CHAPv2 Allow FAR-MS-CHAPv2<	

Procedure 3

Add ISE as RADIUS authentication server

Perform this procedure for every wireless LAN controller (WLC) in the architecture with the exception of the guest WLC in the demilitarized zone (DMZ).

Step 1: Navigate to the WLC console by browsing to https://wlc1.cisco.local.

Step 2: On the menu bar, click Security.

Step 3: In the left pane, under the RADIUS section, click Authentication.

Step 4: Click New. A new server is added.

Step 5: In the Server IP Address box, enter 10.4.48.41, and then enter your RADIUS shared secret.

Step 6: Next to Management, clear the Enable box, and then click Apply.

uluilu cisco	MONITOR WLANS CONTROLLER	Saya WIRELESS <u>S</u> ECURITY MANAGEMENT C <u>O</u> MMANDS HELF	Configuration <u>P</u> ing Logout <u>R</u> efresh • <u>E</u> EEDBACK
Security AAA General RADIUS Authentication Accounting Fallback TACACS+	RADIUS Authentication Server Server Index (Priority) Server IP Address Shared Secret Format Shared Secret	2 • 10.4.48.41 ASCII •	EELUBALK
LDAP Local Net Users MAC Filtering Disabled Clients User Login Policies AP Policies Local EAP Priority Order Certificate	Confirm Shared Secret Kéy Wrap Port Number Server Status Support for RFC 3576 Server Timeout	Coesigned for FIPS customers and requires a key wrap compliant RA 1812 Enabled Enabled 2 seconds	DIUS server)
Access Control Lists Wireless Protection Policies Web Auth	Network User Management IPSec	Enable Enable Enable	
Advanced			

Step 7: Repeat Step 4 through Step 6 to add the secondary engine, 10.4.48.42, to the WLC configuration.

Step 8: After adding Cisco ISE as a RADIUS server, disable the current RADIUS server in use. By disabling the server instead of deleting it, you can easily switch back if needed. Perform this procedure for every wireless LAN controller (WLC) in the architecture with the exception of the guest WLC in the DMZ.

Step 9: On the RADIUS Authentication Servers screen, click the Server Index of the original RADIUS server, and then, for **Server Status**, select **Disabled**. Click **Apply**.

Step 10: On the RADIUS Authentication Servers screen, click Apply.

սիսիս								Sa <u>v</u> e (Configuration		Logout <u>R</u> efresh
CISCO	MONITOR	<u>W</u> LANs <u>C</u> (ONTROLLER	WIRELESS SE	ECURITY	MANAGEMENT	C <u>O</u> MMANDS	HELP	<u>F</u> EEDBACk	(
Security	RADIUS	Authenticati	ion Server:	S						Apply	New
AAA General RADIUS Authentication Accounting Fallback TACACS+		tion ID Type ^I 8 Key Wrap elimiter	IP Address (Designed Hyphen	for FIPS customers	and requir	s a key wrap co	mpliant RADIUS	server)			
LDAP Local Net Users	Network User	Management	Server Index	Server Address	s Port	IPS	iec	Admin	Status		
MAC Filtering Disabled Clients	v		1	10.4.48.15	1812	Dis	abled	Disable	d		
User Login Policies AP Policies			2	10.4.48.41	1812	Dis	abled	Enabled	ł		
AP Policies Incal FAP	V		3	10.4.48.42	1812	Dis	abled	Enabled	ł		
Priority Order											
Certificate											
Access Control Lists	1. Call Stat	ion ID Type will i	be applicable (only for non 802.1>	c authentica	ion only.					
 Wireless Protection Policies 											
Web Auth											
Advanced											

Procedure 4

Add ISE as RADIUS accounting server

Perform this procedure for every wireless LAN controller (WLC) in the architecture, with the exception of the guest WLC in the DMZ.

Step 1: On the menu bar, click Security.

Step 2: In the left pane, under the RADIUS section, click Accounting.

Step 3: Click New. This adds a new server.

Step 4: In the Server IP Address box, enter 10.4.48.41, enter your RADIUS shared secret, and then click Apply.

սիսիս						Sa <u>v</u> e C	Configuration Ping	Logout <u>R</u> efresh
cisco	MONITOR WLANS CONTR	OLLER W <u>I</u> RELESS	<u>S</u> ECURITY	MANAGEMENT	C <u>O</u> MMANDS	HELP	<u>E</u> EEDBACK	
Security	RADIUS Accounting Ser	vers > New					< Back	Apply
AAA General CADUS AADUS Adubentication Accounting Fallback TACACS+ LDAP Local Net Users MAC Filtering Disabled Clients User Login Policies AP Policies Local EAP	Server Index (Priority) Server IP Address Shared Secret Format Shared Secret Confirm Shared Secret Port Number Server Status Server Timeout	2 10.4.48,41 ASCII ASCII						
	Network User	Enable						
 Priority Order Certificate 	IPSec	Enable Enable						
Access Control Lists								
Wireless Protection Policies								
▶ Web Auth								
▶ Advanced								

Step 5: Repeat Step 3 through Step 4 to add the secondary engine, 10.4.48.42, to the WLC configuration.

Step 6: On the RADIUS Accounting Servers screen, click the Server Index of the original RADIUS server, and then, for Server Status, select **Disabled**. Click **Apply**.

Step 7: On the RADIUS Accounting Servers screen, click Apply.





Enable DHCP profiling

You need to enable DHCP profiling on the WLC in order to send DHCP information to the engine for endpoint profiling.

Step 1: On the WLC, navigate to **WLANs**, and then select the WLAN ID for the SSIDs you wish to monitor.

Step 2: On the Advanced tab, in the Client Profiling section, select **DHCP Profiling**.

WLANs	WLANs > Edit '10k-WLAN-Data'	< Back	Apply
WLANs WLANs	General Security QoS Advanced		
Advanced	Maximum Allowed 0 Clients d Static IP Tunneling	NAC State None Load Balancing and Band Select	-
	Land the static of the static	Client Load Balancing	
	Wi-Fi Direct Clients Disabled Policy Maximum Allowed	Client Band Select Z	
	Clients Per AP 200 Radio	Passive Client	
	Off Channel Scanning Defer	Media Session Snooping Enabled	
	Scan Defer 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Priority	Re-anchor Roamed Voice Clients Enabled	
		KTS based CAC Policy Enabled	
	Scan Defer Time 100 (msecs)	Client Profiling	
	FlexConnect	DHCP Profiling 🔽 Enabled	
	FlexConnect Local Enabled		
	FlexConnect Local Auth 🕰 🔲 Enabled		
	Learn Client IP Address 💈 😿 Enabled		-
	•		

Step 3: When the message appears about enabling DHCP Reqd and disabling Local Auth, click **OK**, and then click **Apply**.

Step 4: When a message appears saying that the WLANs need to be disabled, click **OK**.

Process

Enabling Authorization

- 1. Configure identity groups
- 2. Create profile to deny iPhones
- 3. Create authorization rule to deny iPhones
- 4. Create profiles for virtual desktops
- 5. Create authorization rules for VDI
- 6. Configure WLC for authorization

If you want to provide differentiated access for the BYOD devices, you must create an authorization policy. This example describes how to create a policy based on the type of device that is connecting. The user authenticates by using their AD credentials but gets different levels of access based on the type of device being used. The policy described here denies all access to anyone using an iPhone. If the user is using an iPad or Android device, the user gets access to the VDI environment and the Internet.

Procedure 1

Configure identity groups

Cisco ISE has more in-depth options to give more details on the devices connecting to the network. To help identify the endpoints, identity groups are used to classify profiled endpoints. You use these identity groups to create authorization policies.

The example below shows how this is done for an Apple iPad. The procedure for other types of devices is similar.

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over Policy, and then click Profiling.

Step 2: Click Apple-iPad.

Step 3: Select Create Matching Identity Group, and then click Save.

cisco Identity Services Engine		se-1 admin Logout Feedback
🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Admir	nistration 🔻	🐽 Task Navigator 👻 🚱
🛃 Authentication 🛛 🧕 Authorization 🔀	Profiling 👩 Posture 👼 Client Provisioning 🔄 Security Group Access 🛛 🐥 Policy Elements	
Profiling P (→ = 10 Profiling Policies Profiling Policies	Profiler Policy * Name Acple-Pad Description Policy for Acple Pads Policy Finabled Image: Comparison of the policy for Acple Pads Policy for Acple Pads Policy for Acple Pads Policy Finabled Image: Comparison of the policy for Acple Pads Image: Comparison of the policy for Acple Pads Policy for Acple Pads * Minum Certainty Factor 20 Image: Comparison of the policy for Acple Pads Image: Comparison of the policy for Acple Pads * Network Scan (MAP) Action NONE Image: Comparison of the policy for Acple Pads Image: Comparison of the policy for Acple Pads If Condition Apple-IPadRule2Check1_AND_Apple-MacBe	

This can be done for other endpoint types as needed. In this example deployment, this procedure was also performed for Android and Apple iPhone. You can investigate the rules used to profile the endpoint to understand the process. In the case of the Apple iPad, Cisco ISE uses two rules—one is based on DHCP information, and the other is based on HTTP.

Procedure 2

Create profile to deny iPhones

In an authorization profile, you define the permissions to be granted for network access. An organization may decide that they don't want to allow certain devices on the network at all, regardless of whether the user has valid credentials or not. The policy created in this procedure denies any iPhone access to the network. This policy is an example and can be modified to suit your environment.

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over **Policy**, and then, in the Policy Elements section, choose **Results**.

Step 2: In the left pane, double-click **Authorization**, and then select **Authorization Profiles**.

Step 3: Click Add.

Step 4: Enter a name and description for the policy you are adding.

Step 5: In the Access Type list, choose ACCESS_REJECT, and then click Submit.

cisco Identity Services Engine		ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Adm	nistration 🔻	🕫 Task Navigator 🔻 😢
🔒 Authentication 🛛 🧕 Authorization 🔀	Profiling 🕐 Posture 🕞 Client Provisioning 🚊 Security Group Access 💦 Po	blicy Elements
Dictionaries Conditions Results		
Results	Authorization Profile * Name Description Provent Ethones From Accessing Network * Access Type Access REECT Common Tasks DACL Name VLAN Voice Domain Permission VLAN Voice Domain Permission Vica Buttentication Auto Smart Port Fite=ID Advanced Attributes Settings Select an item Attributes Details Access Type = ACCESS_REECT	ی ۹

Procedure 3

Create authorization rule to deny iPhones

An authorization rule is part of the overall authorization policy. The authorization rule links the identity profile to the authorization profile. The following steps describe how to create an authorization rule that uses the profile created in Procedure 2, "Create profile to deny iPhones."

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over Policy, and then choose Authorization.

Step 2: At the end of the Default Rule, click the arrow, and then choose **Insert new rule above**. A new rule, "Standard Rule 1," is created.

Step 3: Rename "Standard Rule 1" to Deny iPhones.

Step 4: In the Conditions section, next to Any, click the + symbol.

Step 5: In the list, next to Endpoint Identity Groups, choose the > symbol.

Step 6: Next to Profiled, click the > symbol, and then click Apple-iPhone.

🏠 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Adn	inistration 🔻			😶 Task Navigator 🔫 😢
Authentication 🙆 Authorization	Profiling 🕜 Posture	🗟 Client Provisioning 🛛 🚊 Securit	y Group Access 💦 🥵 Policy Elements	
Authorization Policy				
Define the Authorization Policy by configuring rules b	ased on identity groups and/or	other conditions. Drag and drop rules to	o change the order.	
First Matched Rule Applies				
Exceptions (0)				
Status Rule Name	Conditions (identity	groups and other conditions)	Permissions	
Profiled Cisco IP Phones	if Cisco-IP-Phone		then Cisco_IP_Phones	Edit 🕶
🖉 🖉 👻 Denv Phones	if Any 🗢	and Condition(s)	then AuthZ Profil	Oone
		ara condition(s)	Aunz Prolit	
Default	if r			Edit 🔻
	Any	<u> </u>		
		Profiled		
			(م	
		Android		
		Android Apple-IPad		
		Android		

Step 7: In the Permissions section, next to AuthZ Profile(s), click the + symbol.

Step 8: In the Select an item list, next to Standard, choose the > symbol.

Step 9: Choose the Deny-iPhone authorization profile that was created in Procedure 2, "Create profile to deny iPhones."

CISCO Identity Services Engine A Hone Operations A Hone Operations Authentication Q Authorization Q Authonization <	Standard	ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
Authorization Policy Define the Authorization Policy by configuring rules based on identity groups and/or other conditions. Drag and drop rules First Matched Rule Apples	Q DenyAccess	±
Status Rule Name Conditions (identity groups and other conditions) Profied Cisco IP Phones		Edt •
Default if no matches, then Permit Select an item	C = cjp	Edt •

Step 10: Click Done, and then click Save.

Procedure 4

Create profiles for virtual desktops

An organization may decide to allow employees to bring in their own devices and use them on the corporate network. However, they may wish to apply some access controls to limit which parts of the network the user is allowed to access from their personal device. In this procedure, it is assumed that you have deployed a Virtual Desktop Infrastructure (VDI). The policy in this procedure pushes an access list to the WLC that allows access only to the VDI infrastructure and the Internet for users who are using either an iPad or an Android device. The access list can be deployed only for access points in the campus or at remote sites that have a local WLC. This policy is an example and can be modified to suit your environment.

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over **Policy**, and then, in the Policy Elements section, choose **Results**.

Step 2: In the left pane, double-click **Authorization**, and then select **Authorization Profiles**.

Step 3: Click Add.

Step 4: Enter a name (example: BYOD-VDI) and a description for the policy.

Step 5: In the Common Task section, select **Airespace ACL Name**, and then enter the name of the ACL that you are applying to the WLC. In this example, the ACL is "VDI."

cisco Identity Services Engine	ise-1 admin Logast Feedba
💧 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Adm	nistration 🔻 😣 😁 Task Navigator 👻 🕗
🛃 Authentication 🧕 Authorization 🔀	Profilina 🕐 Posture 👼 Clent Provisioning 🚊 Security Group Access 👫 Policy Elements
Dictionaries Conditions Results	
Results	Authorization Profile > New Authorization Profile Authorization Profile * Name BYCC-VDI
Authentication Authentication Authorization Authorization Pathorization Profiles Downloadable ACLs	Pescription Percy Your Own Device Profile For Virtual Desktops * Access Type Access Type Access Accept *
Inline Posture Node Profiles Profiling Assture Client Provisioning Security colume Access	Common Tasks Resultentication MACSec Polcy
eux/ dig/rites	
	Advanced Attributes Settings Select an item · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	Access Type ACCESS _ACCEPT Arespuce-ACL-Name = VDI

Step 6: Click Submit.

Procedure 5

Create authorization rules for VDI

The following steps describe how to create an authorization rule that uses the profile created in Procedure 4, "Create profiles for virtual desktops."

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over **Policy** and then choose **Authorization**.

Step 2: At the end of the Default Rule, click the arrow, and then select **Insert new rule above**. A new rule, "Standard Rule 1," is created.

Step 3: Rename "Standard Rule 1" to BYOD VDI.

Step 4: In the Conditions section, next to Any, click the + symbol.

Step 5: In the list, next to Endpoint Identity Groups, choose the > symbol.

Step 6: Next to Profiled, click the > symbol, and then select Apple-iPad.

Step 7: Next to Apple-iPad, click the + symbol.

Step 8: In the list, next to Endpoint Identity Groups, choose the > symbol.

Step 9: Next to Profiled, click the > symbol, and then choose Android.

		dministration 🔻				👓 Task Navigator 👻 🕙
🔔 Authenti	ation 🧕 Authorization	🔀 Profiling 🥂 Posture 👸	Clent Provisioning 🔄 Secu	urity Group Access 💦 🦺 I	Policy Elements	
Authorization	Policy					
)efine the Auth	orization Policy by configuring rule	s based on identity groups and/or othe	r conditions. Drag and drop rule	s to change the order.		
First Matched R	Je Applies 🔹 👻					
Exceptions (I)						
Standard						
Standard						
Status	Rule Name		ps and other conditions)	1	Permissions	
0	Profiled Cisco IP Phones	f Cisco-IP-Phone		then	Disco_IP_Phones	Edit •
	Wireless Black List Default	if Blacklist AND Wireless	802.1X	then I	Blackhole_Wireless_Access	Edit •
	Deny iPhones	if Apple-iPhone		then	DenyAccess	Edit •
i 🖉 🔽 👻 [BYOD Virtual Desktops	if Any 🗢 and	Condition(s)	\$th	en 🛛 AuthZ Profil 🔶	Done
- M M M M		ifr				Edit •
	Default	Apple-IPad	📀 or 📟			

Step 10: In the Condition(s) list, click the + symbol, and then click Create New Condition (Advance Option).

Step 11: Under Expression, next to Select Attribute, click the arrow. The menu opens.

Step 12: Next to AD1, click the > symbol, and then choose ExternalGroups.

Step 13: In the first drop-down list, choose **Equals**, and then, in the second drop-down list, choose **cisco.local/Users/Domain Users**.

	perations 🔻 Policy 🔻 🕯	Administration 🔻				🕫 Task N	avigator
🛓 Authentica	tion 🧕 Authorization	Roffing 💽 Posture	🛃 Client Provisioning	Security Group Access	Policy Elements		
Authorization I	Policy						
		les based on identity groups and	/or other conditions. Drag a	nd drop rules to change the orde	r.		
First Matched Rule	Applies v						
Exceptions (0)							
Standard							
Status	Rule Name	Conditions (iden	tity groups and other condit	ions)	Permissions		
0	Profiled Cisco IP Phones	if Cisco-IP-Phon			then Cisco_JP_Phones		Ed
	Wireless Black List Default	if Blacklist AND V	vireless_802.1X		then Blackhole_Wireles	is_Access	Edi
	Deny iPhones	if Apple-iPhone			then DenyAccess		Edi
🖉 🗹 👻 🖪	YOD Virtual Desktops	if Apple	and Condition(s)	-	then AuthZ Profil	¢	Dor
	Default	if no matches, then	Add All Conditions Be	low to Library			
			Condition Name	Expression			
Save Rese			O 1000000000000000000000000000000000000	AD1:ExternalGroupsQ	Equals 🔻	- -	1
						o.local/Users/BYOD Provisio	ning
						o.local/Users/Domain Users	
						o.local/Users/Finance	

Step 14: In the Permissions section, next to AuthZ Profile(s), click the + symbol.

Step 15: In the Select an item list, next to Standard, click the > symbol.

Step 16: Select the BYOD-VDI authorization profile that was created in Procedure 4, "Create profiles for virtual desktops."

cisco Identity Services Engine				ise-1	admin Logout Feedback
🛕 Home Operations 🔹 Policy 💌 Admi	istration 🔻				Task Navigator 🛛 🕗
Authentication 💽 Authorization 🔀	Profiling 👩 Posture 🐻 Client Pr	ovisioning 💦 🚊 Security Gro	up Access 🕜 🐥 Policy Elements		
Authorization Policy			Standard	1	
Define the Authorization Policy by configuring rules ba	sed on identity groups and/or other condition	ons. Drag and drop rules to cha	← ■ :=		
			Blackhole_Wireless_Access		
 Exceptions (0) 			Grace_IP_Phones	-	
Standard			C Deny-iPhone		
			Q DenyAccess		
Status Rule Name	Conditions (identity groups and o	ther conditions)	RemitAccess		
Profiled Cisco IP Phones	f Cisco-IP-Phone				Edit 👻
Wireless Black List Default	if Blacklist AND Wireless_802.1X			:855	Edt +
Deny iPhones	if Apple-iPhone				Edit •
🖉 🗹 👻 BYOD Virtual Desktops	if Apple 💠 and AD1:E	demalGroups EQUALS cisco.I	-	-	Done
Default	if no matches, then PermitAcces				Edit +
		Select an item	O		
Save Reset					
🕑 Help			Alarms 🙆	181 🔥 10 👩 3	8 Notifications (0)

Step 17: Click Done, and then click Save.

â	Home	Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Adm	ninistration	•				👓 Task Navigat	tor 📲 🕙
Ŀ	Authent	ication 🧕 Authorization 🔀	Profiling	🖸 Posture 🕞 Client Provisioning	Security Group Access	🐥 Policy	Elements		
۸th	orizatio	n Policy							
ine	e the Auth	orization Policy by configuring rules b	ased on ide	entity groups and/or other conditions. Drag a	and drop rules to change the ord	r.			
st	Matched F	Rule Applies 🔹							
Ex	ceptions ((0)							
St	andard								
St	andard								
St	andard Status	Rule Name		Conditions (identity groups and other condi	(tions)	Permi	ssions		
St		Rule Name Profiled Cisco IP Phones		Conditions (identity groups and other condi Cisco-IP-Phone			ssions IP_Phones		Edit •
	Status		if			then Cisco			Edit • Edit •
	Status Ø	Profiled Cisco IP Phones	if if	Cisco-IP-Phone		then Cisco	JP_Phones		
St	Status	Profiled Cisco IP Phones Wireless Black List Default	if if	Cisco-IP-Phone Blacklist AND Wireless_802.1X		then Cisco _. then Black?	JP_Phones tole_Wireless_Access Access		Edit 🕶

Procedure 6

Configure WLC for authorization

Configure every WLC in the environment, with the exception of the guest WLC in the DMZ, with access lists to support this newly defined policy. The ACL that is referenced by the VDI authorization profile needs to be defined on the WLC. When the clients on the campus and at remote sites with a local controller connect to the WLC and authenticate, Cisco ISE passes a RADIUS attribute requesting the ACL be applied for this client.

Step 1: In your browser, enter **https://wlc1.cisco.local**. This takes you to the WLC console.

Step 2: On the menu bar, click Security.

Step 3: In the left pane, expand Access Control Lists, and then click Access Control Lists.



Step 4: Click New.

Step 5: Name the access list, and then click Apply.

Step 6: Click the name in the list. This allows you to edit the newly created access list.

ahaha					Sa <u>v</u> e Co	onfiguration <u>P</u> ing	Logout <u>R</u> efresh
cisco	MONITOR <u>W</u> LANS	<u>C</u> ONTROLLER	WIRELESS	<u>S</u> ECURITY	MANAGEMENT	C <u>o</u> mmands he	LP <u>F</u> EEDBACK
Security	Access Control L	ists				New	Apply
 ▼ AAA General ▼ RADIUS Authentication 	Enable Counters Name	v		Туре			
Accounting Fallback TACACS+	VDI			IPv4			
LDAP Local Net Users							

Step 7: Click Add New Rule.

Step 8: Create a new access list rule based on your security policy, and then click **Apply**. Create additional rules to complete the policy. In this example deployment, the access list allows only access to services required to use the VDI client on the user's personal device and no other internal resources. The policy also allows for access to the Internet.

ISCO MONITOR WLANS CONTROLLER WIRELESS SECURITY MANAGEMENT COMMANDS HELP EEEDBACK	
Access Control Lists > Edit Add N	ew Rule
Ceneral	
entication Access List Name VDI ounting	
back Deny Counters 0	
Destination et Users Seg Action Source IP/Mask IP/Mask Protocol Source Port Dest Port DSCP Direction Number of H	lits
tering 0.0.0.0 10.4.48.10	_
gin Policies D.0.0.0 255.255.255	
cies 10.4.48.10 0.0.0.0 rd Policies 2 Permit / / Any Any Any Any Any O	
AP 255:255:255:255:0.0.0.0	
Order 0.0.0.0 10.4.48.41 3 Permit / / Any Any Any Any Any O	
ate 0.0.0.0 255.255.255	
Control Lists 10.4.48.41 0.0.0.0 4 Permit / / Any Any Any Any Any O	
Control Lists 255.255.255.255 0.0.0.0 255.255 255.255 255	
<u>s</u> Permit / / Any Any Any Any Any Any O	
ss Protection 0.0.0.0 255.255.255 10.4.48.42 0.0.0.0	
th Permit / Any Any Any Any Any Any O	
255.255.255.255 0.0.0.0 0.0.0.0 10.4.48.217	
ed Permit / / Any Any Any Any Any O 0.0.0.0 255.255.255.255	
10.4.48.217 0.0.0.0	_
B Permit / / Any Any Any Any Any O 255.255.255.255 0.0.0.0	
0.0.0.0 10.4.57.0 9 Permit / / Any Any Any Any Any Any O	
9 Permit / / Any Any Any Any Any Any O 0.0.0.0 255.255.20	
10.4.57.0 0.0.0.0 10 Permit / / Any Any Any Any Any O	
255.255.255.0 0.0.0.0	
10.4.16.0 10.4.0.0 11 Deny / / Any Any Any Any Any O	
255.255.255.0 255.254.0.0	
12 Permit / / Any Any Any Any Any 0	
0.0.0.0 0.0.0.0 12 Permit / / Any Any Any Any Any Any O 0.0.0.0 0.0.0.0	

Tech Tip

The access list needs to have entries for the traffic in both directions, so make sure you have pairs of access list rules for both inbound and outbound traffic. Also, there is an implicit "deny all" rule at the end of the access list so any traffic not explicitly permitted is denied.

Next, you enable the WLC to allow Cisco ISE to use RADIUS to override the current settings, so that the access list can be applied to the wireless LAN.

Step 9: On the menu bar, click WLANs.

Step 10: Click the WLAN ID of the wireless network that the wireless personal devices are accessing.

Step 11: Click Advanced, and then select Allow AAA Override.

սիսիս	Sage Configuration Ping Logout Bef
CISCO	MONITOR WLANS CONTROLLER WIRELESS SECURITY MANAGEMENT COMMANDS HELP EEEDBACK
WLANs	WLANs > Edit 'WLAN-Data'
WLANS WLANS	General Security QoS Advanced
Advanced	Allow AAA Override Image: Enabled DHCP Coverage Hole Detection Image: Enabled DHCP Server Override
	Enable Session Timeout Session Timeout (secs) DHCP Addr. Assignment Aironet IE Finable Finable Addr. Assignment Finable Session Timeout (secs)
	Diagnostic Channel
	IPv6 Enable Z MFP Client Protection # Optional . Override Interface ACL None . DTIM Period (in beacon intervals)
	P2P Blocking Action Disabled Client Exclusion 3 IF Enabled 60 1000 mmout Value (sees) 802.11a/n (1 - 255) 1
	Maximum Allowed 0 NAC
	Static IP Tunneling #2 Enabled NAC State None Control Channel Scanning Defer Load Balancing and Band Select
	Scan Defer Priority 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Client Load Balancing Image: Client Band Select £ Image: Client Band Band Band Band Band Band Band Band
	Passive Client

Step 12: Click Apply, and then click Save Configuration.

Enable device provisioning

Cisco ISE allows you to provision a device for network access by deploying digital certificates and configuring the 802.1X supplicant. Digital certificates are a Cisco best practice when deploying 802.1X, as they provide a higher level of assurance than just a username and password. In this example deployment, you deploy digital certificates to Apple iOS and Google Android devices. The certificate authority (CA) you use is the one built into Windows Server 2008 Enterprise, and you enable it on the existing Active Directory (AD) server.



Deploying Digital Certificates

- 1. Install certificate authority
- 2. Create template for auto-enrollment
- 3. Edit registry
- 4. Install trusted root certificate for domain
- 5. Install trusted root on AD server
- 6. Request a certificate for ISE from the CA
- 7. Download CA root certificate
- 8. Issue certificate for Cisco ISE
- 9. Install trusted root certificate in ISE
- 10. Configure SCEP
- 11. Install local certificate in Cisco ISE
- 12. Delete old certificate and request

Procedure 1

Install certificate authority

Step 1: Install an enterprise root certificate authority on the AD server.

Reader Tip

For more information about installing a certificate authority, see the Microsoft Windows Server 2008 Active Directory Certificate Services Step-by-Step Guide:

http://technet.microsoft.com/en-us/library/cc772393%28WS.10%29. aspx

Procedure 2

Create template for auto-enrollment

You need to create a certificate template to enable auto-enrollment for these devices.

Step 1: On the CA console, navigate to Start > Administrative Tools > Certification Authority.

Step 2: Expand the CA server, right-click **Certificate Templates**, and then choose **Manage**. The Certificate Templates Console opens.

Certification Authority (Local	Name		Intended Purpose	
Gioso-AD-CA Revoked Certificates Issued Certificates Pending Requests Failed Requests Certificate remplates	Comp User: SE EXchu Manage New New Refresh Export List Help	covery Agent =S Controller tver ter	Intended Purpose Server Authentication, Client Authentication Client Authentication, Secure Email, Encry Server Authentication Certificate Request Agent Directory Service Agent Directory Service Email Replication Client Authentication, Server Authentication File Recovery Client Authentication, Server Authentication Server Authentication Server Authentication Client Authentication Server Authentication Client Authentication Server Authentication Encrypting File System, Secure Email, Clien <al> Microsoft Trust List Signing, Encrypting File</al>	

Step 3: Right-click the User template, and then choose Duplicate Template.

For compatibility with Windows XP, make sure that Windows 2003 Server Enterprise is selected.

Step 4: In the template properties window, click **General**, and then enter a name for the template.

Step 5: On the Request Handling tab, select Allow private key to be exported, make sure Enroll subject without requiring any user input is selected, and then click CSPs.

Step 6: Select Requests can use any CSP available on the subject's computer, and then click OK.

Step 7: On the Security tab, click the user created to run SCEP, and then make sure **Allow** is selected for all options: Full Control, Read, Write, Enroll, and Autoenroll.

SCEP User Properties	<u>? ×</u>
General Request Handling Subject Name Issu Superseded Templates Extensions Sect	uance Requirements urity Server
Group or user names:	
Authenticated Users SCEP User (scep_user@cisco.local)	
Administrator Administrator Domain Admins (CISCO\Domain Admins)	
Domain Users (CISCO \Domain Users)	
Senterprise Admins (CISCO\Enterprise Admins)	
Add	Remove
Permissions for SCEP User Allow	r Deny
Full Control	
Read 🗹	
Write	
Enroll Autoenroll	
For special permissions or advanced settings, click Advanced	Advanced
Autorou.	
Leam about access control and permissions	
OK Cancel Apply	y Help

Step 8: On the Subject Name tab, select Supply in the request.

Step 9: On the Extensions tab, click **Application Policies**, and then make sure Client Authentication is listed.

Step 10: Click **Basic Constraints**, and then make sure the subject is an end-entity. These are both default settings so they shouldn't need to be modified.

Step 11: Click Issuance Policies, and then click Edit.

Step 12: Click Add, choose All issuance policies, and then click OK.

adit Issuance Policies Extension	×
An issuance policy describes the conditions under whice a certificate is issued.	ch
Issuance policies:	
All issuance policies	
Add Edit Remove	
Make this extension critical	
OK Cancel	

Step 13: Click OK.

Step 14: Use the defaults for the remaining tabs, click Apply, and then click OK.

Step 15: Close the Certificate Templates Console.

Step 16: In the Certificate Authority console, right-click Certificate Templates, and then navigate to New > Certificate Template to Issue.

le Action View	Help			
• 🔿 🖄 🧔	3			
Certification Authori	ty (Local)	Name	Intended Purpose	
disco-AD-CA		Reputer (2003 Template)	Server Authentication, Client Authentication	
Revoked Ce		CEP Encryption	Certificate Request Agent	
Sued Certi		Real Exchange Enrollment Agent (Offline req		
Pending Rec		IPSec (Offline request)	IP security IKE intermediate	
Failed Requ		Directory Email Replication	Directory Service Email Replication	
	<u>M</u> anage	Domain Controller Authentication	Client Authentication, Server Authenticatio	
	New	Certificate Template to Issue	File Recovery	
			Encrypting File System	
	View	 Domain Controller 	Client Authentication, Server Authentication	
	Refresh	Web Server	Server Authentication	
	Export List	Computer	Client Authentication, Server Authentication	
		User	Encrypting File System, Secure Email, Clien	
	Help	Subordinate Certification Authority	<all> Microsoft Trust List Signing, Encrypting File</all>	
		this Certification Authority		

Step 17: Choose the previously defined template, and then click OK.

🔜 Enable Certificate Templates X Select one Certificate Template to enable on this Certification Authority. Note: If a certificate template that was recently created does not appear on this list, you may need to wait until information about this template has been replicated to all domain controllers. All of the certificate templates in the organization may not be available to your CA. For more information, see Certificate Template Concepts. Name ٠ Intended Purpose Revenue Authentication Client Authentication, Server Authentication, Smart Card Logon, KDC Authent Rev Recovery Agent Key Recovery Agent Response Signing OCSP Signing RAS and IAS Server Client Authentication, Server Authentication Router (Offline request) Client Authentication SCEP User Client Authentication, Secure Email, Encrypting File System Smartcard Logon Client Authentication, Smart Card Ligon Smartcard User Secure Email, Client Authentication, Smart Card Logon 🚇 Trust List Signing Microsoft Trust List Signing 回 User Signature Only Secure Email. Client Authentication OK Cancel

Procedure 3

Edit registry

There are a few changes that need to be made to the registry to support auto-enrollment in order to complete the installation.

Step 1: On the certificate authority, navigate to Start > Run, enter regedit, and then click OK. The Windows Registry Editor opens.

During the installation of the Network Device Enrollment Service, you created a user for the Simple Certificate Enrollment Protocol (SCEP). This user needs to have full access to the HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINE\SOFTWARE\ Microsoft\Cryptography\MSCEP key.

Step 2: Right-click HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINE\SOFTWARE\Microsoft\ Cryptography\MSCEP, and then select Permissions.

Step 3: Select the user that you created for SCEP during installation, in the Allow section select **Full Control**, and then click **OK**.

Permissions for MSCEP	×
Security	
Group or user names:	
& CREATOR OWNER	
SYSTEM SCEP User (scep_user@cisco.local)	
& Administrators (CISCO\Administrators)	
& Users (CISCO\Users)	
Add	Remove
	hemove
Permissions for SCEP User Allow	Deny
Full Control	
Read Special permissions	
	- II
For special permissions or advanced settings, Adv	vanced
click Advanced.	
Learn about access control and permissions	
OK Cancel	Apply

Step 4: There are three values for certificate templates in the HKEY_ LOCAL_MACHINE\SOFTWARE\Microsoft\Cryptography\MSCEP key that need to point to the template that you created in Procedure 2. Those values are EncryptionTemplate, GeneralPurposeTemplate, and SignatureTemplate.

Step 5: Right-click EncryptionTemplate, and then choose Modify.

Step 6: In the Value Data box, enter the name of the template created in Procedure 2, and then click **OK**.

Edit String	×
Value name:	
Encryption Template	
Value data:	
SCEPUser	
	OK Cancel

Step 7: Repeat Step 4 and Step 5 for GeneralPurposeTemplate and SignatureTemplate.

💰 Registry Editor				
File Edit View Favorites Help				
CATYPE	Name (b) (Default) (b) EncryptionTemplate (c) SignatureTemplate (c) SignatureTemplate	Type REG_SZ REG_SZ REG_SZ REG_SZ	Data (value not set) SCEPUser SCEPUser SCEPUser	Þ
Computer HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINE SOFTWAR	RE\Microsoft\Cryptography\MSC	ЕР		11.

Next, disable the HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINE\SOFTWARE\Microsoft\ Cryptography\MSCEP\UseSinglePassword key.

Step 8: Click HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINE\SOFTWARE\Microsoft\ Cryptography\MSCEP\UseSinglePassword.

Step 9: Right-click UseSinglePassword, and then choose Modify.

Step 10: In the Value data box, enter 0, and then click OK.

Edit DWORD (32-bit) Value	×
Value name:	
UseSinglePassword	
Value data:	Base
0	Hexadecimal
	C Decimal
	OK Cancel

Procedure 4

Install trusted root certificate for domain

Install a trusted root certificate on the AD controller in order to distribute it to the clients so that certificates from the CA server will be trusted.

Step 1: On the CA console, launch a web browser, and then connect to the certificate authority, https://ca.cisco.local/certsrv.

Step 2: Click Download a CA certificate, certificate chain, or CRL.

Step 3: Make sure the current certificate is selected and the **DER** encoding method is selected.

Step 4: Click **Download CA Certificate**, and then save the certificate file on the AD controller.

Microsoft Active Directory Certificate Services cisco-AD-CA	<u>Home</u>					
Download a CA Certificate, Certificate Chain, or CRL						
To trust certificates issued from this certification authority, install this CA certificate chain.						
To download a CA certificate, certificate chain, or CRL, select the certificate and encoding method.						
CA certificate:						
Current [cisco-AD-CA]						
Encoding method:						
© DER C Base 64						
Download CA certificate Download CA certificate chain Download latest base CRL Download latest delta CRL						

Step 5: On the CA console, navigate to Start > Administrative Tools > Group Policy Management.

Step 6: Expand Forest > Domains > <local domain >> Group Policy Objects.

Step 7: Right-click Default Domain Policy, and then choose Edit.

🔜 Group Policy Management				_ _ _ ×
📓 File Action View Window H	Help			_8×
🗢 🔿 🖄 📅 👫 🗂 🗙 🖉	1 2 🖬			
Group Policy Management Group Policy Management Group Policy Management Group Policy Management Group Policy Object Group Policy	y Controllers Po y Default Do Scope Deta Links Display links i The following Controllers Po		this GPO: Enforced Link Enabled Path No Yes ciscolocal	×
Group Policy Modeling Group Policy Results	Back Up Restore from Backup Import Settings Save Report	ering h this GPO can only apply to the follow	ving groups, users, and computers:	
	⊻iew New <u>W</u> indow from Here	ated Users Computers (CISCO\Domain Computers	8)	
	<u>C</u> opy Delete Rena <u>m</u> e Refresh	. Remove	Properties	
	Help	nked to the following WMI filter:		
-	<pre>(none)</pre>	-	C pen	
Open the GPO editor				

Step 8: Navigate to Computer Configuration > Policies > Windows Settings > Security Settings > Public Key Policies, right-click Trusted Root Certification Authorities, and then choose Import. The Certificate Import Wizard launches.

Group Policy Management Editor							_ 🗆 ×
File Action View Help							
🗢 🔿 🚈 📋 🛛 🗠 🚘 🛛 📅							
🖃 👰 Computer Configuration		Issued To	*		Issued B	y	E
🖃 🧮 Policies				There are no it			
표 🚞 Software Settings				There are no its	ems to snow	in this view.	
🖃 🧮 Windows Settings							
Image: The second se							
Scripts (Startup/Shutdown)							
🖃 🚡 Security Settings							
🗉 📑 Account Policies							
🗉 🚊 Local Policies							
🗉 🚎 Event Log							
🕀 📴 Restricted Groups							
🗉 📴 System Services							
🕀 📴 Registry							
표 📴 File System							
🕀 🌆 Wired Network (IEEE 802.3) Policies							
표 🚞 Windows Firewall with Advanced Security							
Network List Manager Policies							
🗉 🚂 Wireless Network (IEEE 802.11) Policies							
Public Key Policies							
Encrypting File System							
BitLocker Drive Encryption							
Automatic Certificate Request Settings							
Trusted Root Certification Authorities							
Enterprise Trust	Import.						
Intermediate Certification Authorities	All Task	s •					
Trusted Publishers	ALL TOOM	· ·					
Untrusted Certificates	View	•					
Trusted People	Defeed						
	Re <u>f</u> resh						
dd a certificate to a store	Export	List			_		
	Help		_)		

Step 9: Click Next.

Step 10: Click **Browse**, locate the trusted root certificate saved in Step 2, and then click **Next**.



Step 11: Place the certificate in the Trusted Root Certification Authorities certificate store, and then click **Next**.

Step 12: Click Finish. The certificate imports.

Step 13: Click OK. The wizard closes.



Install trusted root on AD server

In addition to configuring AD server to distribute the trusted root certificate to workstations, you need to install the certificate directly on the AD server. A group policy object (GPO) update takes care of this automatically. In this procedure, you force the update to run immediately.

Step 1: On the AD console, navigate to **Start > Run**.

Step 2: Type cmd, and then press Enter. A command window opens.

Step 3: Update the group policy.

gpupdate



Procedure 6

• Request a certificate for ISE from the CA

In order to obtain a certificate from the CA, Cisco ISE needs to generate a signing request that will be used by the CA to generate a certificate.

Step 1: Connect to https://ise-1.cisco.local.

Step 2: Mouse over **Administration**, and then, from the System section of the menu, choose **Certificates**.

Step 3: Under Certificate Operations, select Local Certificates.

Step 4: Click Add, and then choose Generate Certificate Signing Request.

cisco Identity Services Engine				ise-1 admin Lo	gout Feedback
🏠 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Admir	nistration 🔻			😶 Task Navi	gator 👻 🕘 🔵
🔆 System 🏾 👰 Identity Management	Network Resources 🛛 🛃 Guest Management				
Deployment Licensing Certificates Logg	ing Maintenance Admin Access Settings				
Certificate Operations	Local Certificates			Selected 0 Total	1 🤣 🎡 🗸
S Local Certificates	/ Edit -Add Export XDelete		Show	All	- 7
Scertificate Signing Requests	Friend Import Local Server Certificate	Destand			
ortificate Authority Certificates		 Protocol 	Issued To	Issued By	Valid Fr
Services	Defau Generate Sen-Signed Certificate Generate Certificate Signing Request	HTTPS,EAP	ise-1.cisco.local	ise-1.cisco.local	Fri, 2 M
	Bind CA Certificate				

Step 5: In the **Certificate Subject** box, after the "CN=", enter the fully qualified domain name (FQDN) of the Cisco ISE server, and then click **Submit**.

cisco Identity Services Engine	ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Admir	nistration 🔻 🕘
🔆 System 🛛 🖉 Identity Management	Network Resources 🛛 🛃 Guest Management
Deployment Licensing Certificates Logg	ing Maintenance Admin Access Settings
Certificate Operations	Local Certificate > Generate Certificate Signing Request Generate Certificate Signing Request
Certificate Signing Requests	Certificate
🔹 Certificate Authority Certificates	* Certificate Subject CN=ise-1.cisco.local
SCSP Services	* Key Length 2048 • * Digest to Sign With SHA-256 •
	Submit Cancel

Step 6: On the message acknowledging that the certificate was successfully generated, click **OK**.

Step 7: Click Certificate Signing Requests, select the check box next to the new request, and then click Export.

cisco Identity Services Engine		ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Adminis	ration 🔻	😶 Task Navigator 👻 🕗
🔆 System 🦉 Identity Management 📲 I	letwork Resources 🛛 🖉 Guest Management	
Deployment Licensing Certificates Loggin	Maintenance Admin Access Settings	
Certificate Operations	Certificate Signing Requests	Selected 1 Total 1 😵 🎡 🖕
🔹 Local Certificates	Export XDelete	Show All
Certificate Authority Certificates		Key Length Timestamp
🔹 OCSP Services	✓ ise-1.cisco.local CN=ise-1.cisco.local	2048 Thu Mar 08 13:16:35 PST

Step 8: Save the file to your local machine. You will use this file to generate a certificate on the CA for Cisco ISE.



Download CA root certificate

Step 1: Browse to https://ca.cisco.local/certsrv.

Step 2: Click Download a CA certificate, certificate chain, or CRL.

Step 3: Make sure the current certificate is selected and the **DER** encoding method is selected.

Step 4: Click **Download CA Certificate**, and then save the certificate file on the local machine.

Microsoft Active Directory Certificate Services cisco-AD-CA	<u>Home</u>
Download a CA Certificate, Certificate Chain, or CRL	
To trust certificates issued from this certification authority, install this CA certificate.	
To download a CA certificate, certificate chain, or CRL, select the certificate and encoding method.	
CA certificate:	
Encoding method:	
© DER	
C Base 64	
Install CA certificate	
Download CA certificate	
Download CA certificate chain	
Download latest base CRL	
Download latest delta CRL	



Step 3: Click advanced certificate request.

Step 4: In a text editor, such as Notepad, open the certificate file saved in Procedure 6, "Request a certificate for ISE from the CA."

Step 5: Select all the text, and then copy it to the clipboard.

Step 6: In the browser, on the Submit a Certificate Request or Renewal Request page, in the **Saved Request** box, paste the certificate contents.

Step 7: In the Certificate Template list, choose Web Server, and then click Submit.

Microsoft Active Directory Certificate Services cisco-AD-CA Home
Submit a Certificate Request or Renewal Request
To submit a saved request to the CA, paste a base-64-encoded CMC or PKCS #10 certificate request or PKCS #7 renewal request generated by an external source (such as a Web server) in the Saved Request box.
Saved Request:
Base-64-encoded LbF/xwsXj1X4pLoGXcf31RySEcJudYB62 CMC or KVSXj1X4pLoGXcf3120YDbw2c0ZX9b0dirfn VCCS #ID or KVC34XB04/eF12/V01JTF3juhn/HjvvzX0H1Rb0 VCCS #ID or KVG14AXCB4FH64DS41515cS20wh646j64202 VCCS #ID or Certificate request
Additional Attributes:
Attributes:
Submit>

Step 8: Select **DER encoded**, and then click **Download certificate**. The certificate saves to your local machine.



Install trusted root certificate in ISE

Step 1: In the Cisco ISE interface, mouse over **Administration**, and then, from the System section of the menu, choose **Certificates**.

Step 2: Click Certificate Authority Certificates, and then click Import.

🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Adr	ministration 🔻	👓 Task Navigator 👻 😢
🔆 System 🛛 👰 Identity Management 🛛 🧃	🖬 Network Resources 🛛 🛃 Guest Management	
Deployment Licensing Certificates Log	igging Maintenance Admin Access Settings	
Certificate Operations	Certificate Authority Certificates	Salastad 0 Tatal 2 🚳 🖓
Certificate Operations	Certificate Authority Certificates	Selected 0 Total 2 😵 🎡 🗸
ocal Certificates		Selected 0 Total 2 🔮 🎡 🗸
	Certificate Authority Certificates	
🔹 Local Certificates 🔹 Certificate Signing Requests	Certificate Authority Certificates	- 6

Step 3: Click **Browse**, and then locate the root CA certificate saved in Procedure 7, "Download CA root certificate."

Step 4: Select Trust for client authentication, and then click Submit.

🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Ad	ministration 🔻 🧧 🤒 Task Navigator 👻 🙋
🔆 System 🛛 🖉 Identity Management	🖬 Network Resources 🛛 🛃 Guest Management
Deployment Licensing Certificates Lo	gging Maintenance Admin Access Settings
Certificate Operations	Cetificat Autority Cetificate > Import Import a new Trusted CA (Certificate Authority) Certificate
🔹 Certificate Signing Requests	* Certificate File C:\Downloads\rootcert.cer Browse
🔹 Certificate Authority Certificates	Friendly Name
🔹 OCSP Services	
	All Certificate Authority Certificates are available for selection as the Root CA for secure LDAP connections. In addition, they may be enable for EAA-TLS and administrative authentication below:
	Enable Validation of Certificate Extensions (accept only valid certificate)
	Description
	Submit Cancel

Procedure 10

Configure SCEP

To support self-provisioning, you need to configure Cisco ISE to support SCEP, in order to enable Cisco ISE to obtain and then provision certificates for clients.

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over **Administration**, and then, in the System section, choose **Certificates**.

Step 2: In the Certificate Operations pane, click **SCEP CA Profiles**, and then click **Add**.

Step 3: Enter a profile name and description, and then enter the URL for the SCEP service. For this deployment, the URL is http://ca.cisco.local/certsrv/mscep/mscep.dll.

Step 4: Click Submit.

🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Adn	inistration 🔻	👐 Task Navigator 👻 😢
🔆 System 🦉 Identity Management 👔	Network Resources 🛃 Web Portal Management	
Deployment Licensing Certificates Log	ging Maintenance Admin Access Settings	
Certificate Operations	SCEP Certificate Authority Certificate > New SCEP Prefile Add Profile SCEP Certificate Authority * Name CA	
ஜ SCEP CA Profiles	Description Certificate Authority	
	* URL [http://ca.cisco.local/certsrv/mscep/mscep.dl Test Connectivity	



Install local certificate in Cisco ISE

Step 1: In the Cisco ISE interface, mouse over **Administration**, and then, from the System section of the menu, choose **Certificates**.

Step 2: Click Local Certificates.

Step 3: Click Add, and then choose Bind CA Certificate.



Step 4: Click **Browse** and locate the certificate saved from Procedure 8, "Issue certificate for Cisco ISE." **Step 5:** In the Protocol section, select both **EAP** and **Management Interface**. When you receive a message that selecting the Management Interface check box will require the Cisco ISE appliance to restart, click **OK**, and then click **Submit**.

cisco Identity Services Engine		ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Adm	nistration 🔻	👓 Task Navigator 👻 🕙
🔆 System 🛛 🖉 Identity Management	Network Resources 🛛 🛃 Guest Management	
Deployment Licensing Certificates Log	ging Maintenance Admin Access Settings	
Certificate Operations	Local Certificate > Bind CA Signed Certificate Bind CA Signed Certificate Certificate Certificate	
🔹 Certificate Authority Certificates	Certificate File C\Downloads\SEcert.cer Browse_ Filendly Name Enable Validation of Certificate Extensions (accept only valid certificate)] 0
	Protocol Protocol Analysis of the set of t	e Certificate" option will allow the

Step 6: When you receive a message that the Cisco ISE appliance will restart, click **OK**.

Procedure 12

Delete old certificate and request

Now that you have imported the local certificate into Cisco ISE, you need to delete the old self-signed certificate as well as the certificate signing request generated previously.

Step 1: In the Cisco ISE interface, mouse over **Administration**, and then, in the System section, choose **Certificates**.

Step 2: Click Local Certificates.

Step 3: Select the box next to the self-signed certificate. This is the certificate issued by the Cisco ISE appliance and not the certificate issued by the CA that was just imported.

cisco Identity Services Engine		0		ise-1 admin Lo	gout Feedbac
🏠 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Admi	nistration 🔻			😁 Task Navi	gator 👻 😢
🔆 System 🏾 👰 Identity Management	Network Resources 🛛 🛃 Guest Management				
Deployment Licensing Certificates Logo	ing Maintenance Admin Access Settings				
Certificate Operations	Local Certificates			Selected 1 Total	2 🤣 🎡 🗸
Second Certificates	/Edit -Add @Export XDelete		Show	All	- 8
Certificate Signing Requests Certificate Authority Certificates	Friendly Name	Protocol	Issued To	Issued By	Valid F
OCSP Services	Default self-signed server certificate		ise-1.cisco.local	ise-1.cisco.local	Fri, 2 I
T	ise-1.cisco.local#cisco-AD-CA#00001	HTTPS,EAP	ise-1.cisco.local	cisco-AD-CA	Thu, 8

Step 4: Click Delete, and then click OK.

Step 5: Click Certificate Signing Requests.

Step 6: Select the box next to the certificate signing request that was created in Procedure 6, "Request a certificate for ISE from the CA."

cisco Identity Services Engine		ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
🏠 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 💌 Admin	stration 🔻	😁 Task Navigator 👻 😢
🔆 System 🛛 🖉 Identity Management	Network Resources 🛛 🛃 Guest Management	
Deployment Licensing Certificates Loggi	ig Maintenance Admin Access Settings	
Certificate Operations	Certificate Signing Requests	Selected 1 Total 1 🛭 🍪 🥁 🗸
Local Certificates Certificate Signing Requests	Export XDelete	Show All 🔹 😽
Certificate Authority Certificates	Friendly Name Certificate Subject	Key Length Timestamp
🔹 OCSP Services	V ise-1.cisco.local CN=ise-1.cisco.local	2048 Thu Mar 08 13:16:35 PST

Step 7: Click Delete, and then click OK.

Process



Configuring Self-Provisioning

- 1. Create AD group for provisioning
- 2. Enable AD group in Cisco ISE
- 3. Enable EAP-TLS
- 4. Enable self-provisioning portal
- 5. Create authentication profile
- 6. Create native supplicant profile
- 7. Define provisioning policy
- 8. Modify authentication policy
- 9. Create authorization profile
- 10. Configure provisioning authorization rule
- 11. Create Android authorization profile
- 12. Create Android provisioning rule
- 13. Create 802.1X authorization rule
- 14. Modify default rule
- 15.Configure WLCs
- 16. Create profiles for user groups
- 17. Create authorization rules for user groups
- 18.Delete wireless 802.1X rule
- 19. Configure WLC for authorization
- 20.Provision an Apple iPad
- 21. Provision an Android tablet
Next, you configure Cisco ISE to provision digital certificates and the 802.1X supplicant for Apple iOS and Google Android devices. To do this, you create a client provisioning profile for each operating system you wish to provision, and then apply this profile to the authentication profile. You also create a new authorization profile for these devices.

Procedure 1 Create AD group for provisioning

To simplify the deployment, you create a group in Active Directory for users that are allowed to perform self-provisioning.

Step 1: Open the AD server console, and then navigate to Start > Administrative Tools > Active Directory Users and Computers.

Step 2: From the Action menu, choose New, and then select Group.

Step 3: Enter a name for the group, and then click OK.

New Object - Group	×					
Create in: cisco.local/U	sers					
Group name:						
BYOD Provisioning						
Group name (pre-Windows 2000):						
BYOD Provisioning						
Group scope	Group type					
C Domain local	© Security					
Global	C Distribution					
C Universal						
	OK Cancel					

Step 4: Double-click the group name. This opens the group properties window and allows you to add users to the group.

Step 5: Click the Members tab, and then click Add.

Step 6: Enter the users you wish to add, and then click OK.

Step 7: Click Apply, and then click OK.

BYOD Provisioning P	roperties	? ×
General Members	Member Of Managed By	,
Members:		
Name	Active Directory Domain Services Fold	er
Alex Reed	cisco.local/Users cisco.local/Users	
👗 Chris Berry 🤱 Pat Jones	cisco.local/Users	
ß	1	
Add	Remove	
	OK Cancel	Apply

Enable AD group in Cisco ISE

You must now configure Cisco ISE to use this new group for authentication.

Step 1: In your browser, enter https://ise-1.cisco.local.

Step 2: On the menu bar, mouse over **Administration**, and then, in the Identity Management section, select **External Identity Sources**.

Step 3: In the left pane, click Active Directory, and then select Groups.

Step 4: Click Add, and then choose Select Groups From Directory.

Step 5: Search for the group you wish to add. The domain field is already filled in. The default filter is a wildcard to list all groups. You can click **Retrieve Groups** if you want to get a list of all groups in your domain.

Step 6: Select the group you want to use for BYOD provisioning, and then click **OK**.

Dom Filter)
	Name	Group Ty
	cisco local/Builtin/Users	LOCA
_	cisco.local/Builtin/Windows Authorization Access Group	LOCA
_	cisco.local/Builtin/windows/Adition/Addess/Ordup	GLOB
_	cisco.local/CitrixXenDesktops/xendesktop-administrator	GLOB
_	cisco.local/Citrix XenDesktops/xendesktop-user	GLOB
_	cisco.local/Users/Allowed RODC Password Replication Group	LOCA
_	cisco.local/Users/BYOD Provisioning	GLOB
	cisco.local/Users/Cert Publishers	LOCA
	cisco.local/Users/DHCP Administrators	LOCA
	cisco.local/Users/DHCP Users	LOCA
	cisco.local/Users/Denied RODC Password Replication Group	LOCA
	cisco.local/Users/DnsAdmins	LOCA
	cisco.local/Users/DnsUpdateProxy	GLOB
	cisco.local/Users/Domain Admins	GLOB
•		Þ

Procedure 3

Enable EAP-TLS

In a previous section, you disabled EAP-TLS. Now that you are using digital certificates, you need to enable it.

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over **Policy**, and then, in the Policy Elements section, choose **Results**.

Step 2: In the left pane, double-click **Authentication**. This expands the options.

Step 3: Double-click Allowed Protocols, and then choose Default Network Access.

Step 4: Select the global **Allow EAP-TLS** check box and, under the PEAP settings, select the **Allow EAP-TLS** check box, and then click **Save**.



Enable self-provisioning portal

Self-provisioning uses the guest web portal, and you need to modify the default guest portal to support self-provisioning.

Step 1: From the **Administration** menu, in the Web Portal Management section, select **Settings**.

Step 2: In the Settings section, double-click Guest, double-click Multi-Portal Configurations, and then click DefaultGuestPortal.

Step 3: On the Operations tab, make sure Enable Self-Provisioning Flow is selected, and then click Save.





Create authentication profile

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over **Administration**, and then, in the Identity Management section, choose **External Identity Sources**.

Step 2: In the left pane, click Certificate Authentication Profile, and then click Add.



Step 3: Enter a name for the profile, and then, in the Principal Username X509 Attribute list, choose **Subject Alternative Name**.

CISCO Identity Services Engine	r Administration ▼	ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
🔆 System 🏾 👰 Identity Manageme	nt 📄 🗑 Network Resources 🛛 😹 Guest Management	
Identities Groups External Identi	y Sources Identity Source Sequences Settings	
External Identity Sources	Certificate Authentication Profile UB > New Certificate Authentication Profile Certificate Authentication Profile * Name DotIX_Certs Description	ii.
RSA Securit	Principal Username X509 Attribute Subject Alternative Name Perform Binary Certificate Comparison with Certificate retrieved from LDAP or Active Directory LDAP/AD Instance Name Submit Cancel	

Step 4: Click Submit.

An identity source sequence allows certificates to be used as an identity store, and also allows for a backup identity store if a primary identity store is unavailable.

Step 5: Click Identity Source Sequences, and then click Add.

cisco Identity Services Engine			ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
🏠 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 ،	Administration 🔻		😬 Task Navigator 👻 🕗
🔆 System 🏾 👰 Identity Management	🔛 Network Resources 🛛 🛃 Guest Management		
Identities Groups External Identity Sou	rces Identity Source Sequences Settings		
Identity Source Sequence			Selected 0 Total 2 😽
/Edit 🕂 Add 🖓 Duplicate 🗙 Delete		Show All	- 8
Name	Description	Identity Stores	
Guest_Portal_Sequence	A built-in Identity Sequence for the Guest Portal	Internal Users	
Sponsor_Portal_Sequence	A built-in Identity Sequence for the Sponsor Portal	Internal Users	

Step 6: Enter a name for the sequence.

Step 7: In the Certificate Based Authentication section, select **Select Certificate Authentication Profile**, and then choose the profile created previously.

Step 8: In the Authentication Search List section, in the **Available** list, double-click the AD server. This moves it to the **Selected** list.

Step 9: In the Advanced Search List Settings section, select Treat as if the user was not found and proceed to the next store in the sequence.

cisco Identity Services Engine	ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Administration 💌	👓 Task Navigator 👻 🕗
🛠 System 🛛 👰 Identity Management 📲 Network Resources 🔠 Guest Management	
Identities Groups External Identity Sources Identity Source Sequences Settings	
Identity Source Sequence List > New Identity Source Sequence Identity Source Sequence	-
▼ Identity Source Sequence	
*Name Dot1X_Certificates	
Description	
Certificate Based Authentication Select Certificate Authentication Profile DotIX_Certs Authentication Search List	
A set of identity sources that will be accessed in sequence until first authentication succeeds Available Selected	
Internal Users	
2 2	
 Advanced Search List Settings Select the action to be performed if a selected identity store cannot be accessed for authentication 	
O Do not access other stores in the sequence and set the "AuthenticationStatus" attribute to "ProcessError"	
Treat as if the user was not found and proceed to the next store in the sequence	-

Step 10: Click Submit.

Procedure 6

Create native supplicant profile

You need to create a native supplicant profile for each operating system that is used for self-provisioning.

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over **Policy**, and then, in the Policy Elements section, select **Results**.

Step 2: In the Results section, double-click Client Provisioning, and then click Resources.

Step 3: Click Add, and then choose Native Supplicant Profile.

🏠 Home Operations 🔻 Policy	 Admir 	istration 🔻				👓 Task Navigator 👻 🧧
🚨 Authentication 🛛 🧕 Authorizatio	n 🔀 P	rofiling 📃 💽 Posture	🕞 Client Provision	ng 📃 Security Group /	Access 🔒 Poli	cy Elements
Dictionaries Conditions Results	;					
Results		Resources				Selected 0 Total 2 🦂
	P	/ Edit -Add -		ete	Show Al	
◆ • ■ ■	م ذ	Name Agent reso	Duplicate XDel	ete Type	Show All	
Authentication		Name Agent reso	ources from Cisco site ources from local disk	7		• 5
Authentication Authorization		Name Agent reso WinSI Agent reso WinSI Agent reso WinSI ISE Posture	ources from Cisco site ources from local disk e Agent Profile	Туре	Version	Last Update
Authentication Authorization Profiling		Name Agent reso WinSI Agent reso WinSI Agent reso WinSI ISE Posture	ources from Cisco site ources from local disk	Type NinSPWizard	Version 1.0.0.19	Last Update 2012/05/15 13:07:30
Authentication Authentication Authonization Profiling Posture Clear thready and a second		Name Agent reso WinSI Agent reso WinSI Agent reso WinSI ISE Posture	ources from Cisco site ources from local disk e Agent Profile	Type NinSPWizard	Version 1.0.0.19	Last Update 2012/05/15 13:07:30

Step 4: Enter a name and description for the profile.

Step 5: Enter the SSID for your wireless network.

Step 6: In the **Allowed Protocol** list, choose **TLS**, for the remaining options, use the default values, and then click **Submit**.

	istration • ee Task Naviga ofiling @ Posture © Client Provisioning : Security Group Access	
Dictionaries Conditions Results		
	Native Supplicant Profile Native Supplicant Profile * Name EAP-TLS Profile Description * Operating System ALL * Connection Type Wired * Stip IOK-WLAN-Data Security WPA2 Enterprise *	
	*Allowed Protocol TLS * *Key Size 1024 * ()	
	Submit Cancel	

Define provisioning policy

You create a provisioning policy for each operating system (in this example, Apple iOS and Google Android) in order to determine which supplicant profile to apply.

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over Policy, and then select Client Provisioning.

Step 2: Enter a name for the rule.

Step 3: In the Operating Systems section, click the + symbol, and then select Apple iOS All.



Step 4: Next to Result, click the + symbol, and then select the profile created in Procedure 6.

iliulu cisco Identity Services E				ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
A Home Operations F	lolicy 🔹 Administration 🔹 norization 🔀 Profiling 🖉 Posture 🗍	🕞 Client Provisioning 📄 Security (Group Access 💦 🐥 Policy B	👓 Task Navigator 👻 🕗
Define the Client Provisioning Policy	to determine what users will receive upon login agent, agent profile, agent compliance module, witzard profile and/or witzard. Identity Groups Operating Systems	and user session initiation: and/or agent customization package.	Results ⊕ then Result	C Actions *

Step 5: Click Actions, and then select Insert new policy below.

Step 6: Create a rule for Android devices by repeating Step 1 through Step 3.

Step 7: Click Save.

cisco Identity Services Er				ise-1 admin Logout	Feedback
🏠 Home Operations 🔻 Po	olicy 🔻 Administration 🔻			👓 Task Navigator	- 🕗
🚨 Authentication 🛛 🧕 Autho	orization 🔀 Profiling 👩 Posture	e 🕞 Client Provisioning	🚊 Security Group Access	Policy Elements	
	o determine what users will receive upon I gent, agent profile, agent compliance mor				-
For Native Supplicant Configuration: v	izard profile and/or wizard.				
•					
Rule Name	Identity Groups Operating Syst	ems Other Conditions		Results	
Apple iOS	If Any 💠 and Apple iO	🔶 and Condition(s)	💠 then	🙀 Actions	-
EAP-TLS Profile 🔶					
Android	If Any I and Android	and Condition(s)	4 then	Actions	-
EAP-TLS Profile		o onanon(o)	0	THE ACTORS	-
					_

Modify authentication policy

Now that you have created a certificate authentication profile and identity source sequence for digital certificates, you need to enable the 802.1X authentication policies for wireless users.

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over **Policy**, and then choose **Authentication**.

For wireless users, you should modify the authentication policy to first check if the client is using EAP-TLS and then, if not, to allow them to use an authentication method like Protected Extensible Authentication Protocol (PEAP) that uses a username and password for credentials. This allows users who haven't gotten certificates yet to still access the network. When they connect to the network, the provisioning process pushes a certificate to the device.

Step 2: To the right of the "and..." on the Wireless-Dot1X rule, click the black triangle. This opens the identity store used for this rule.

Step 3: Next to Default rule, in the Actions list, choose Insert new rule above.

Home Operations • Policy •	Administration 🔹	re 📙 Clent Provisioning	🧝 Security Group Access	Policy Elements	👓 Task Navigator 👻
thentication Policy					
ine the Authentication Policy by selecting t cy Type	the protocols that ISE should us	se to communicate with the r	network devices, and the identi	ty sources that it should us	e for authentication.
	: If Wired MAB	alow protocols AI		and	🖗 Actions *
MAB *	: If Wired_MAB	G alow protocos [A]	owed Protocol : Default Netwo	and	🍄 Actions 👻
Wired-Dot1X	: If Wired_802.1X	alow protocols Al	owed Protocol : Default Netwi	and	谷 Actions 👻
Wireless-Dot1X	: If Wireless_802.1X	alow protocols Al	owed Protocol : Default Netwo	🔰 and 🖕	🖗 Actions *
Default	: USB AD1	\$			🎡 Actions 👻
					insert new row abo

Step 4: Enter a name for the rule, and then, next to Enter Condition, click the symbol. This opens the expression builder.

Step 5: Click Create New Condition (Advance Option).

Step 6: Under Expression, next to Select Attribute, click the arrow.

Step 7: Next to Network Access, click the arrow, and then select **EapAuthentication**.



Step 8: In the first list, choose Equals, in the second list, choose EAP-TLS, and then click OK.

cisco Identity Services Engine		ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻	Administration 🔻	🕫 Task Navigator 👻 🕗
Authentication	🔀 Profiling 🖉 Pasture 👵 Clent Provisioning 🔄 Security Group Access 🛛 🦺 Policy Elements	
Authentication Policy Define the Authentication Policy by selecting th Policy Type O Simple I Rule-Based	re protocols that ISE should use to communicate with the network devices, and the identity sources that it should use t	for authentication.
MAB 🔻	: If Wired_MAB I allow protocols Allowed Protocol : Default Netwo and	👹 Actions 👻
Wired-Dot1X	: If Wired_802.1X allow protocols Allowed Protocol : Default Netwo and	🖗 Actions +
Wireless-Dot1X	: If Wireless_802.1X and Expression Builder	Actions *
EAP-TLS	: If Enter Co	
Default	Condition Name Expression Condition Name Expression Equals Eq	▼ ∰v
Default Rule (If no match)	: allow protocols Allowed Protocol : Default Netwool and Use identity source : Internal Users 💠	Actions +

Step 9: Next to Internal Users, click the + symbol.

Step 10: In the **Identity Store** list, choose the identity source sequence created in Procedure 5 "Create authentication profile," Step 5, use the default options for this identity source, and then click anywhere in the window to continue.



Step 11: Click Save

Procedure 9

Create authorization profile

Next, you create an authorization profile to configure the WLC to redirect the client to the Cisco ISE provisioning page when the client authenticates to the wireless network without a certificate.

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over **Policy**, and then, in the Policy Elements section, choose **Results**.

Step 2: In the Results pane, double-click **Authorization**, and then click **Authorization Profiles**.

Step 3: Click Add.

Step 4: Enter a name and description for the profile.

Step 5: Select **Web Authentication**, and then, in the list, choose **Supplicant Provisioning**.

Step 6: Enter the name of the ACL that will be applied to the WLC. You will configure this ACL on the WLC later in this guide.

Step 7: Select **Airespace ACL Name**, and then enter the name of the ACL that will be applied to the WLC. This is the same ACL used in Step 6.

Step 8: Click Submit.

cisco Identity Services Engine	ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Adm	nistration 🔻 😌 😶
🛃 Authentication 💿 Authorization 🔀	Profiling 👩 Posture 📙 Client Provisioning 🚊 Security Group Access 🥀 Policy Elements
Dictionaries Conditions Results	
Results Authentication Authentication Authorization Profiles Authorization Profiles Profiling Profiling Profiling Sacurity Group Access	Authorization Profile See Authorization Profile * Name Uescription Uescription Uescription Uescription Uescription * Access Acces

Procedure 10

Configure provisioning authorization rule

Next, you configure authorization rules to apply the authorization profile created in the previous step to provision devices not using certificates on the wireless network.

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over Policy, and then choose Authorization.

Step 2: At the end of the BYOD Virtual Desktops rule, click the black triangle, and then select **Insert New Rule Above**. A new rule, "Standard Rule 1," is created above the BYOD rules that were created earlier.

Step 3: Rename "Standard Rule 1" to Wireless Provisioning.

Step 4: In the Conditions column, next to Any, click the + symbol.

Step 5: In the list, next to Endpoint Identity Groups, click the > symbol, and then, next to Profiled, click the > symbol.

Step 6: Choose Apple-iPad.

Step 7: Next to Apple-iPad, click the + symbol.

Step 8: In the list, next to Endpoint Identity Groups, choose the > symbol.

Step 9: Next to Profiled, click the > symbol, and then choose Android.

cisco I	dentity Services Engine					ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
🛕 Home	Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Admini	stration 🔻				👓 Task Navigator 🔫
🛓 Authen	ication 🧕 Authorization 🔣 F	Profiling 💽 Posture	🛃 Client Provisioning	🧝 Security Group Access	🐥 Policy Elements	
Authorization Define the Aut First Matched	norization Policy by configuring rules base	ed on identity groups and	/or other conditions. Drag ar	nd drop rules to change the orde	r.	
Exceptions Standard	0)					
Status	Rule Name Profiled Cisco IP Phones	if Cisco-IP-Phone	tity groups and other conditi a		Permissions then Cisco_IP_Phones	Edit 🗸
	Wireless Black List Default	If Blacklist AND V	/ireless_802.1X		then Blackhole_Wireless_Access	Edit 🗸
	Deny Phones	if Apple-iPhone			then DenyAccess	Edit 🕶
1	Wireless Provisioning	if Any =	and Condition(s)	\$	then 🛛 AuthZ Profil 🔶	Done
	BYOD Virtual Desktops	if			en BYOD-VDI	Edit 🕶
	Default	If r	or	-		Edit 🕶
Save	eset	Android	0	- J.		

Step 10: In the Condition(s) list, click the + symbol, and then click Select Existing Condition from Library.

Step 11: In the list, next to Compound Conditions, click the > symbol, and then choose **Wireless_802.1X**.

🛕 Home	Operations V Policy V Adn	ninistration 🔻		90 T	Task Navigator 🔫 🕗
🛓 Authenti	cation 🧕 Authorization 🛛	🖞 Profiling 🛛 👰 Posture 🕞 Client Provis	oning 🔄 Security Group Access 🔗 🔥	Policy Elements	
uthorization efine the Auth First Matched R	orization Policy by configuring rules b	based on identity groups and/or other conditions.	Drag		
Exceptions (Wired_802.1X		
Standard			Wired_MAB	-	
Standard			Wireless_802.1X Wireless MAB	-	
Status	Rule Name	Conditions (identity groups and othe	cond Catalyst_Switch_Local_Web_Authentic	ermissions	
0	Profiled Cisco IP Phones	if Cisco-IP-Phone	WLC_Web_Authentication	.sco_IP_Phones	Edit 🔻
	Wireless Black List Default	if Blacklist AND Wireless_802.1X		lackhole_Wireless_Access	Edit 🕶
	Deny iPhones	if Apple-iPhone		DenyAccess	Edit 🔻
🧖 🗹 👻 [Wireless Provisioning	if Apple 🔶 and Condition	3)	n AuthZ Profil	Done
	BYOD Virtual Desktops	if (Apple-iPad Ol cisco.local/Users	ions E		
	Default	if no matches, then Condition Na			(L)
	Default	if no matches, then Condition Na Select Conditio		an and a second se	-

Step 12: At the end of the rule, click the gear icon, and then select **Add Attribute/Value**.

Step 13: Next to Select Attribute, click the arrow. The menu opens.

Step 14: Next to Network Access, click the > symbol, and then choose **EapTunnel**.

Step 15: Under Expression, in the first list, choose **Equals**, and then, in the second list, choose **PEAP**.

Step 16: At the end of this rule, click the gear icon, and then select **Add Attribute/Value**.

Step 17: Next to Select Attribute, click the arrow. The menu opens.

Step 18: Next to AD1, click the > symbol, and then choose ExternalGroups.

Step 19: Under Expression, in the first list, choose **Equals**, and then, in the second list, choose the BYOD group created in Procedure 2.

Authonization Policy Authonization Authoniza	Navigator 👻	••• Ias						
withorization Policy either the Authorization Policy by configuring rules based on identity groups and/or other conditions. Drag and drop rules to change the order. *st Matched Rule Apples *				_		Administration 🔻		
ethe He Authorization Policy by configuring rules based on identity groups and/or other conditions. Drag and drop rules to change the order. In Matched Rule Applies			ss 💦 🔒 Policy Elements	🚊 Security Group Access	Posture 📙 Clent Provisioning	🛃 Profiling 🛛	ication 🧕 Authorization	Authent
ethe He Authorization Policy by configuring rules based on identity groups and/or other conditions. Drag and drop rules to change the order. In Matched Rule Applies								
Inst Matched Rule Apples								
			order.	nd drop rules to change the orc	entity groups and/or other conditions. Drag ar	ules based on identity		
Standard Standard Status Rule Name Conditions (identity groups and other conditions) Permissions Image: Status Profied (Sco IP Phones) If Elsco-IP-Phone then Cisco_IP_Phones Image: Status Wreless Black List Default If Blacklist AND Wreless_B02.1X then Blackhole_Wreless_Access Image: Status Image: Status If Apple_IPhone then DenyAccess Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status							Rule Applies 🔹	Matched F
Standard Standard Status Rule Name Conditions (identity groups and other conditions) Permissions Image: Status Profied (Sco IP Phones) If Elsco-IP-Phone then Cisco_IP_Phones Image: Status Wreless Black List Default If Blacklist AND Wreless_B02.1X then Blackhole_Wreless_Access Image: Status Image: Status If Apple_IPhone then DenyAccess Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status Image: Status								
Status Rule Name Conditions (identity groups and other conditions) Permissions Image: Profied Gsco IP Phones If Cisco-IP-Phone then Cisco_IP_Phones Image: Profied Gsco IP Phones If Blacklist AND Wreless_002.1X then Blacklies_Wreless_Access Image: Phones If Apple-IPhone then DenyAccess Image: Provisioning If Apple-IPhone then DenyAccess								xceptions (
Profiled Casca IP Phones If Casca-IP-Phone then Casca JP_Phones then Casca JP_Phones Wreless Black List Default If Blacklist AND Wreless_002.1X then Blackhole_Wreless_Access Deny Phones If Apple-IPhone then DenyAccess Vireless Provisioning If Apple-IPhone Condition(s) Then Auth2 Profil. O								tandard
Profiled Cisco IP Phones if Cisco-IP-Phone then Cisco_IP_Phones Wrieless Black List Default if BlackList AND Wrieless_002.1X then Blackhole_Wrieless_Access Deny Phones if Apple-IPhone then DenyAccess Verieless Provisioning if Apple-IPhone then DenyAccess			Permissions	ions)	Conditions (identity groups and other conditi	Conc	Rule Name	Status
Deny Phones If Apple-Phone then DenyAccess Vertess Provisioning If Apple-Optimit Condition(s) Then Auth2 Profil	Edit		then Cisco_IP_Phones					0
Deny Phones If Apple-Phone then DenyAccess Vertess Provisioning If Apple-Optimit Condition(s) Then Auth2 Profil	Edit	Anness	then Blackhole Wireless Access		Blacklist AND Wireless 802.1X	if Blar	Wireless Black List Default	
Wreless Provisioning // Apple Condition(s) Condition(s) Condition(s) Condition(s) Condition(s) Condition(s)	Loic	1						_
Condition Name Expression	Edit		then DenyAccess		Apple-iPhone	if App	Deny iPhones	~
RYOD life ul Decktore IE (Appleithed C Condition Name Expression AND	Done	\$	then 🛛 AuthZ Profil 🔶	-	Apple 4 and Condition(s)	if Ap	Wireless Provisioning	/ 🗹 🗸
]	AND .		Expression	Condition Name	if (An	RVOD 18th of Darktone	
Broo with besk ops discollocal/User Witheless_802.1X O Radius:Service-Type EQUALS Framed AND Radius:NAS-Port	- @-+	3-Port	QUALS Framed AND Radius:NAS-Port	Radius:Service-Type EQU	cisco.local/Users Wireless_802.1X 📀	cisco	BTOD Virtual Desktops	<u> </u>
Default If no matches, ther	ND 🎼		Prijek v DEAD	Network Access Far	io matches, ther	if no ma	Default	~
			PEAP	INCOMOR ACCESSICAD	· ·			

Step 20: Next to AuthZ Profile(s), click the + symbol, and then, next to Select an item, click the arrow.

Step 21: Next to Standard, click the > symbol, and then choose the authorization profile created in Procedure 9.

🏠 Home	Operations V Policy V Adm	inistration 🔻					😶 Task Navigator 🔫 🕙
🛓 Autheni	tication 🧕 Authorization 🔀	Profiling 🛛 💽 Post	ure 🛛 🗔 Client Provi	sioning 🛛 👩 Security Gro	up Access 💦 🐥 Policy Elements		
uthorizatio						0	
st Matched	horization Policy by configuring rules b Rule Applies 🔹	ased on identity groups	and/or other conditions	. Urag and drop rules to cha	🖓 🖬 📰 🐇	₽.	
Exceptions	(0)				Blackhole_Wireless_Access Gsco_IP_Phones	_	
Standard					Ca Deny-iPhone		
Status	Rule Name	Conditions (dentity groups and othe	ar conditions)	C DenyAccess	_	
0	Profiled Gsco IP Phones	if Cisco-IP-Pl		or contactor by	Wreless-Provisioning	_	Edit 🛩
~	Wireless Black List Default	if Blacklist Af	D Wireless_802.1X			BSS	Edit 🗸
	Deny iPhones	if Apple-IPho	ne				Edit 🗸
Ø 🗹 👻	Wireless Provisioning	if Apple	💠 and Wireless	_802.1X Network Access:Ea		-	Done
	BYOD Virtual Desktops	if (Apple-iPa	d OR Android) ANI sers/Domain Users				Edit 🕶
~	Default		hen PermitAcces	Select an item	○ - +		Edit 🕶

Step 22: Click Done, and then click Save.

	sco Id	entity Services Engine					ise-1 admin Logout Feed
â	Home	Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Adn	ninistration 🔻				👓 Task Navigator 🔫
	Authent	cation 🧕 Authorization 🖉	Profiling 🛛 💇 Postu	re 📙 Client Provisioning	🚊 Security Group Access	🔒 Policy Elements	
Auti	horizatio	1 Policy					
		orization Policy by configuring rules b	based on identity groups	and/or other conditions. Drag	and drop rules to change the ord	er.	
First	Matched F	ule Applies 🔹 👻					
		~					
▶ E	xceptions (
S	tandard						
	Status	Rule Name	Conditions (in	dentity groups and other cond	itions)	Permissions	
	0	Profiled Cisco IP Phones	if Cisco-IP-Ph	one		then Cisco_IP_Phones	Edit 🕶
		Wireless Black List Default	if Blacklist AN	D Wireless_802.1X		then Blackhole_Wireless_Access	Edit 👻
		Deny iPhones	if Apple-iPho	ne		then DenyAccess	Edit 🕶
		Wireless Provisioning	Access:EapT	OR Android) AND (Wireless unnel EQUALS PEAP AND AD1 ers/BYOD Provisioning)	802.1X AND Network ExternalGroups EQUALS	then Wireless-Provisioning	Edit 🔻
		BYOD Virtual Desktops	if (Apple-iPac cisco.local/Us	OR Android) AND AD1:Exte sers/Domain Users	rnalGroups EQUALS	then BYOD-VDI	Edit 🕶
	~	Default	if no matches, t	nen PermitAccess			Edit 👻
Sa	ave Re	iset					

Procedure 11

Create Android authorization profile

For provisioning, an Android device must download a supplicant provisioning wizard from the Google Play store. Because of this, you need to add an authorization profile and an authorization rule for when the device is in the state where it has started the self-provisioning process but hasn't downloaded the wizard yet.

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over **Policy**, and then, in the Policy Elements section, choose **Results**.

Step 2: In the Results pane, double-click **Authorization**, and then click **Authorization Profiles**.

Step 3: Click Add.

Step 4: Enter a name and description for the profile.

Step 5: Select **Web Authentication**, and then, in the list, choose **Supplicant Provisioning**.

Step 6: Enter the name of the ACL that will be applied to the WLC. You will configure this ACL on the WLC later in this guide.

Step 7: Select **Airespace ACL Name**, and then enter the name of the ACL that will be applied to the WLC. This is the same ACL used in Step 6.

Step 8: Click Submit.



Procedure 12

Create Android provisioning rule

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over **Policy**, and then choose **Authorization**.

Step 2: At the end of the wireless provisioning rule, click the black triangle, and then select **Insert New Rule Above**. This creates a new rule, "Standard Rule 1," above the wireless provisioning rule created in Procedure 10.

Step 3: Rename "Standard Rule 1" to Android Provisioning.

Step 4: In the Conditions column, next to Any, click the + symbol.

Step 5: In the list, next to Endpoint Identity Groups, click the > symbol, and then select **RegisteredDevices**.

Step 6: In the Condition(s) list, click the + symbol, and then click Create New Condition (Advance Option).

Step 7: Next to Select Attribute, click the arrow. The menu opens.

Step 8: Next to Session, click the > symbol, and then choose Device-OS.

Step 9: Under Expression, in the first list, choose **Equals**, and then, in the second list, choose **Android**.

Step 10: Next to AuthZ Profile(s), click the **+** symbol, and then, next to Select an item, click the arrow.

Step 11: Next to Standard, click the > symbol, and then choose the authorization profile created in Procedure 11.

Step 12: Click Done, and then click Save.

Procedure 13

Create 802.1X authorization rule

You need to create an authorization profile to grant devices full network access, which authenticates using certificates.

Step 1: At the end of the default rule, click the black triangle, and then select **Insert New Rule Above**. A new rule, "Standard Rule 1," is created.

Step 2: Rename "Standard Rule 1" to Wireless Dot1X.

Step 3: In the Conditions column, next to Condition(s), click the + symbol, and then click **Select Existing Condition from Library**.

Step 4: In the list, next to Compound Conditions, click the > symbol, and then choose **Wireless_802.1X**.

Step 5: Next to AuthZ Profile(s), click the + symbol, and then, next to Select an item, click the arrow.

Step 6: Next to Standard, click the > symbol, and then choose **PermitAccess**.

Step 7: Click Done, and then click Save.

Procedure 14 Modify default rule

The last step is to modify the default rule to deny network access to any device that has not matched an existing authorization rule.

Step 1: At the end of the default rule, click Edit.

Step 2: Next to PermitAccess, click the + symbol.

Step 3: Next to PermitAccess, click the arrow, next to Standard, click the > symbol, and then choose **DenyAccess**.

Step 4: Click Done, and then click Save.

Â.		Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Admin	nistration	•			😐 Task Navigator 👻	0
4	Authentic	ation 💽 Authorization 🔀	Profiling	🕐 Posture 🕞 Client Provisioning 📄 Security Group Ac	cess 🔥 🧃	Policy Elements		
	prization	,	cad on ide	entity aroups and/or other conditions. Drag and drop rules to change th	oo ordor			
		Je Apples	seu ornae	a loty groups anoyor other contributis. Drag and drop rules to change o	le order.			
ISU M	ацспец к	ue Applies 🔹						
Exc	eptions (())						
Star	ndard							
	Status	Rule Name		Conditions (identity groups and other conditions)		Permissions		
	0	Profiled Cisco IP Phones	if	Cisco-IP-Phone	then	Cisco_IP_Phones	Edit	t∣▼
	~	Wireless Black List Default	if	Blacklist AND Wireless_802.1X	then	Blackhole_Wireless_Access	Edit	t •
	<u>~</u>	Deny iPhones	if	Apple-iPhone	then	DenyAccess	Edit	t •
		Android Provisioning	if	RegisteredDevices AND Session:Device-OS EQUALS Android	then	Android-Provisioning	Edit	t •
		Wireless Provisioning	if	(Apple-iPad OR Android) AND (Wireless_802.1X AND Network Access:EapTunnel EQUALS PEAP AND AD1:ExternalGroups EQUALS cisco.local/Users/BYOD Provisioning)	then	Wireless-Provisioning	Edit	t ¥
	~	BYOD Virtual Desktops	if	(Apple-IPad OR Android) AND AD1:ExternalGroups EQUALS disco.local/Users/Domain Users	then	BYOD-VDI	Edit	t •
		Wireless Dot1X	if	Wireless_802.1X	then	PermitAccess	Edit	t •
		Default	ifr	io matches, then DenyAccess			Edit	t -

Procedure 15 Configure WLCs

Next, you need to configure the WLCs to support device provisioning by defining ACLs that are applied to the controller, and to enable a posture state to be maintained to determine if a device has been provisioned. Perform this procedure for every WLC in the architecture, including controllers deployed at remote sites, with the exception of the guest WLC in the DMZ.

Step 1: In your browser, enter https://wlc1.cisco.local. The WLC console opens.

Step 2: Navigate to **WLANs**, and then select the WLAN ID for the SSIDs you wish to support device provisioning.

Step 3: Click Advanced, and then, in the NAC section, in the list, choose Radius NAC.



Step 4: Click Apply, and then, on the dialog box that appears, click OK.

Step 5: Navigate to Security, and in the pane on the left, expand Access Control Lists, and then click Access Control Lists.

Step 6: Click New.

Step 7: Name the access list the same name that was used in Procedure 9, and then click Apply.

Step 8: Click the name in the list. This allows you to edit the newly created access list.

Step 9: Click Add New Rule.

Step 10: Create a new access list rule based on your security policy, and then click **Apply**. In this example deployment, devices that need provisioning only require access to the primary and secondary Cisco ISE nodes, as well as the AD server that is providing DNS service. All other traffic is denied.

սիսիս									onfiguration	Ping Logout Re	fresh
CISCO	<u>M</u> ONI	ror <u>w</u>	LANS <u>C</u> ONTROLL	ER W <u>I</u> RELESS	<u>S</u> ECURITY	M <u>A</u> NAGEMENT	C <u>O</u> MMANDS	HE <u>L</u> P I	<u>F</u> EEDBACK		
Security	Acce	ss Con	trol Lists > Edit					1	< Back	Add New Rule	•
 AAA General RADIUS Authentication Accounting Fallback 		ral : List Nam Counters	e Provisioni O	ng_ACL							
▶ TACACS+ LDAP Local Net Users	Seq	Action	Source IP/Mask	Destination IP/Mask	Protocol	Source Port	Dest Port	DSCP	Direction	Number of Hits	
MAC Filtering Disabled Clients User Login Policies AP Policies	1	Permit	0.0.0.0 / 0.0.0.0	10.4.48.41 / 255.255.255.255	Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	
Password Policies	2	Permit	10.4.48.41 / 255.255.255.255	0.0.0.0 / 0.0.0.0	Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	
 Priority Order Certificate 	3	Permit	0.0.0.0 / 0.0.0.0	10.4.48.42 / 255.255.255.255	Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	
 Access Control Lists Access Control Lists CPU Access Control Lists 	4	Permit	10.4.48.42 / 255.255.255.255	0.0.0.0 / 0.0.0.0	Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	
FlexConnect ACLs	5	Permit	0.0.0.0 / 0.0.0.0	10.4.48.10 / 255.255.255.255	Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	
 Policies Web Auth TrustSec SXP 	6	Permit	10.4.48.10 / 255.255.255.255	0.0.0.0 / 0.0.0.0	Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	
Advanced	_7_	Deny	0.0.0.0 / 0.0.0.0	0.0.0.0 / 0.0.0.0	Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	

Tech Tip

The access list needs to have entries for the traffic in both directions so make sure you have pairs of access list rules for both inbound and outbound traffic. Also, there is an implicit "deny all" rule at the end of the access list, so any traffic not explicitly permitted is denied.

Next, you need to create an ACL for Android provisioning.

Step 11: In the left pane, expand Access Control Lists, and then click Access Control Lists.

Step 12: Click New.

Step 13: Name the access list the same name that was used in Procedure 11, and then click **Apply**.

Step 14: Click the name in the list. This allows you to edit the newly created access list.

Step 15: Click Add New Rule.

Android provisioning requires that you permit access to the Google Play store in addition to the primary and secondary ISE nodes and DNS server.

Tech Tip

The actual addresses used for the Google Play store may change depending on your location due to the DNS and content distribution services used by Google. The address blocks 74.125.0.0/16 and 173.194.0.0/16 are owned by Google and the Play store has resolved to addresses in both. You should verify the correct address range to use for your environment.

Step 16: Create this new access list, and then click Apply.

սիսիս											Configuration	2ing Logout <u>R</u> efresh
CISCO	MONI	tor <u>w</u>	LANs 🧕	ONTROLLE	ER W <u>I</u> RELESS	SECURIT	Y MANAGEMENT	C <u>O</u> MMANDS	HELP E	EDBACK		
Security	Acce	ss Con	trol List	s > Edit							< Back	Add New Rule
AAA General RADIUS Accounting Fallback TACACS+		e ral s List Nam Counters	Đ	Android 0								
LDAP Local Net Users	Seq	Action	Source	IP/Mask	Destination IP/Mask	Proto	col Source Po	rt Dest Port	DSCF	Direction	Number of Hit	s
MAC Filtering Disabled Clients User Login Policies	1	Permit	0.0.0.0		/ 10.4.48.41 255.255.255.255	Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	
AP Policies Password Policies	2	Permit	10.4.48 255.255	.41 .	0.0.0.0 / 0.0.0.0	/ Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	
Local EAP	3	Permit	0.0.0.0		/ 10.4.48.42 255.255.255.255	/ Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	
 Priority Order Certificate 	4	Permit	10.4.48	.42	/ 0.0.0.0	/ Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	
 Access Control Lists Access Control Lists 	5	Permit	0.0.0.0		/ 10.4.48.10 255.255.255.255	/ Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	
CPU Access Control Lists CPU Access Control Lists FlexConnect ACLs	6	Permit	10.4.48	.10	0.0.0.0	/ Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	
Wireless Protection Policies	7	Permit	0.0.0.0		/ 74.125.0.0 255.255.0.0	/ Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	
Web Auth	8	Permit	74.125.		0.0.0.0	/ Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	
TrustSec SXP Advanced	9	Permit	0.0.0.0		/ 173.194.0.0 255.255.0.0	/ Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	
, Hardheed	<u>10</u>	Permit	173.194		/ 0.0.0.0 0.0.0.0	/ Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	
	11_	Deny	0.0.0.0		0.0.0.0	/ Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	

Create profiles for user groups

The current policy permits full network access to any device that was provisioned. Devices that have not been provisioned are limited to accessing the virtual desktop infrastructure and the Internet. To refine the policy further, limit the parts of the network the employee can access with a provisioned device, based on their AD group.

The policy in this procedure pushes an access list to the WLC that allows only access to the Internet and part of the internal network for users in the IT group, who are using either an iPad or an Android device. The access list can be deployed only for access points in the campus or at remote sites that have a local WLC. This policy is an example and can be modified to suit your environment.

Step 1: In your browser, enter https://ise-1.cisco.local.

Step 2: On the menu bar, mouse over **Policy**, and then, in the Policy Elements section, choose **Results**.

Step 3: In the left pane, double-click Authorization, and then select Authorization Profiles.

Step 4: Click Add.

Step 5: Enter a name (example: BYOD-IT-Provisioned) and a description for the policy.

Step 6: In the Common Task section, select **Airespace ACL Name**, and then enter the name of the ACL that you are applying to the WLC. In this example, the ACL is "IT."

Lisco Identity Services Engine	tration •
🛃 Authentication 🛛 🧕 Authorization 🔀 F	Rofling 🕐 Posture 🕞 Clent Provisioning 🚊 Security Group Access 🥠 Policy Elements
Dictionaries Conditions Results	
Results	Authorization Profile > New Authorization Profile Authorization Profile * Name BYQCJT
Authentication Authentication Authentication Authentication Authentication Profiles Development	Bescription Bing Your Own Device Profile For The IT Group Access Type Access Access
Clent Provide PLCS Clent Provide Profiles Clent Providential	Common Tasks Resultentication MACSec Policy
Security Group Access	NEAT Web Authentication (Local Web Auth) Arrepace ACL Name IT
	Asa VPN Advanced Attributes Settings [Select an term O - +
	Attributes Details Access Type = ACCESS ACCEPT Arespace-AOL-Name = IT

Step 7: Click Submit.

Procedure 17 Create authorization rules for user groups

The following steps describe how to create an authorization rule that uses the profile created in Procedure 16, "Create profiles for user groups."

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over **Policy**, and then choose **Authorization**.

Step 2: At the end of the BYOD Virtual Desktops rule, click the black triangle, and then select **Insert New Rule Above**. This creates a new rule, "Standard Rule 1," and puts it above the BYOD Virtual Desktops rule created earlier.

Step 3: Rename "Standard Rule 1" to BYOD IT Provisioned.

Step 4: In the Conditions column, next to Any, click the + symbol.

Step 5: In the list, next to Endpoint Identity Groups, click the > symbol, and then select **RegisteredDevices**.

Step 6: In the Condition(s) list, click the + symbol, and then click Create New Condition (Advance Option).

Step 7: Next to Select Attribute, click the arrow. The menu opens.

Step 8: Next to Network Access, click the > symbol, and then choose **EapAuthentication**.

Step 9: Under Expression, in the first list, choose **Equals**, and then, in the second list, choose **EAP-TLS**.

Step 10: At the end of this rule, click the gear icon, and then select Add Attribute/Value.

Step 11: Next to Select Attribute, click the arrow. This opens the menu.

Step 12: Next to AD1, click the > symbol, and then choose ExternalGroups.

Step 13: Under Expression, in the first list, choose **Equals**, and then, in the second list, choose the IT group.

ĥ١	icme	Operations V Policy V Admi	inistration				👓 Task Navigator 👻 😢
🛃 A	uthenti	cation 🧕 Authorization 🛃	Profiling	💽 Posture 🛛 🔂 Client Provisioning	🚊 Security Group Access	Policy Elements	
		n Policy		a de la las m			
			ased on idi	ity groups and/or other conditions. Drag a	nd drop rules to change the on	aer.	
st Ma	tched R	ule Applies 🔹					
Exce	ptions (
Stan							
Stan	aard						
	Status	Rule Name		inditions (identity groups and other condit	ions)	Permissions	
	~	Wireless Black List Default	if	acklist AND Wireless_802.1X		then Blackhole_Wireless_Access	Edit
	~	Profiled Cisco IP Phones	if	sco-IP-Phone		then Gsco_IP_Phones	Edit
	~	Deny iPhones	if	pple-iPhone		then Deny-iPhone	Edit
	~	Android Provisioning	if	egisteredDevices AND Session:Device-OS	EQUALS Android	then Android-Provisioning	Edit
	~	Wireless Provisioning	if	ople-iPad OR Android) AND (Wireless a	202 4X ALIC Metwork	then Wireless-Provisioning	
	<u>×</u>	wreless Provisioning		coss:EapTunnel EQUALS PEAP AND AD1: coss:EapTunnel EQUALS PEAP AND AD1:		chem wireless-Provisioning	Edit ·
ø	· •	BYOD IT Provisioned		Regist 💠 and Condition(s)	-	then 🛛 AuthZ Profil 🔶	Done
	~	BYOD IT	if	Apple-IPad D	low to Library		
	~	BYOD Finance	if	Condition Name	Expression		AND +
	_			co.local/Users	s:EapAuthentication	Equals	▼ ⊘ ŵ≁
	~	BYOD HR	if	sco.local/Users	AD1:ExternalGroups	Equals	IT* 😋 👾
	~	BYOD Research	if	pple-iPad OK Android) AND ADJEKter		then BYOU-Research	Edit
	~	Wireless Dot1X	if	ireless_802.1X		then PermitAccess	Edit
	~	Default		natches, then DenyAccess			Edit

Step 14: Next to AuthZ Profile(s), click the + symbol, and then, next to Select an item, click the arrow.

Step 15: Next to Standard, click the > symbol, and then choose the authorization profile BYOD-IT.

Step 16: Click Done, and then click Save.

	Home	Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Adm			🗝 Task Navigator 🔫
4	Authenti	ation 🧕 Authorization 🔀	Profiling	🕐 Posture 🛛 Clent Provisioning 📄 Security Group Access 👘 🦺 Policy Elements	
-			-		
	orizatior				
fine	the Auth	orization Policy by configuring rules b	ased on ic	entity groups and/or other conditions. Drag and drop rules to change the order.	
rst M	latched R	Je Apples 🔹			
Evo	eptions (
Star	ndard				
	Status	Rule Name		Conditions (identity groups and other conditions) Permissions	
	0	Profiled Cisco IP Phones	if	Cisco-IP-Phone then Cisco_IP_Phones	Edit
		Wireless Black List Default	if	Blacklist AND Wireless_802.1X then Blackhole_Wireless_Access	Edit
	~	Deny iPhones	if	Apple-iPhone then DenyAccess	Edit
	~	Android Provisioning	if	RegisteredDevices AND Session:Device-OS EQUALS Android then Android-Provisioning	Edit
		Wireless Provisioning	if	(Apple-IPad OR Android) AND (Wreless_802.1X AND Network then Wreless-Provisioning Access:EapTunnel EQUALS PEAP AND ADI:ExternalGroups EQUALS discubical/Users/BYOD Provisioning)	Edit
ø	- 1	BYOD IT Provisioned		Regist 🔶 and Condition(s) 🗢 then AuthZ Profil 🔶	Done
		BYOD Virtual Desktops	if	(Apple-IPad O All Conditions Below to Library cisco.local/Users	
	~	Wireless Dot1X	if	Wireless_802.1) Condition Name Expression	AND *
				Network Access:Eag2 Equals EAP-TLS	▼ ⊘ ∰-

Step 17: For each group that you want to define a policy, repeat this procedure. In the example deployment described here, you need to create policies for the Finance, HR, and Research groups.

h,	Home	Operations 🔻 Policy 💌 Adi	ministration	*			🍽 Task Navigator 🔫 🕗
ļ	Authenti	cation 🧕 Authorization	💫 Profiling	🖉 Posture 🕞 Client Provisioning 📄 Security G	oup Access 🦳 🖁	Policy Elements	
		- Deller					
	orizatior	,	harad on ide	entity groups and/or other conditions. Drag and drop rules to ch	ande the order		
			Dased of fide	andry groups and/or other conditions, pray and drop rules to d	ange die orden.		
	natorieu k	ule Applies 🔹 🔻					
Exc	eptions (0)					
Sta	ndard						
	Status	Rule Name		Conditions (identity groups and other conditions)		Permissions	
		Profiled Cisco IP Phones	if	Cisco-IP-Phone	then	Cisco IP Phones	Edit 🗸
	~	Wireless Black List Default	if	Blacklist AND Wireless 802.1X	the sec	Blackhole Wireless Access	
				-	Uleri	Blackhole_wireless_Access	Edit 🔻
	~	Deny iPhones	if	Apple-iPhone	then	DenyAccess	Edit 👻
	<u>~</u>	Android Provisioning	if	RegisteredDevices AND Session:Device-OS EQUALS Android	then	Android-Provisioning	Edit 🕶
		Wireless Provisioning	if	(Apple-iPad OR Android) AND (Wireless_802.1X AND Networ Access:EapTunnel EQUALS PEAP AND AD1:ExternalGroups EQ dsco.local/Users/BYOD Provisioning)		Wireless-Provisioning	Edt 🕶
		BYOD IT Provisioned	if	RegisteredDevices AND (Network Access:EapAuthentication EAP-TLS AND AD1:ExternalGroups EQUALS cisco.local/Users/IT	EQUALS then	BYOD-IT	Edit 👻
		BYOD IT HR	if	RegisteredDevices AND (Network Access:EapAuthentication EAP-TLS AND AD1:ExternalGroups EQUALS cisco.local/Users/IT	EQUALS then	BYOD-HR	Edit 🕶
		BYOD IT Finance	if	RegisteredDevices AND (Network Access:EapAuthentication EAP-TLS AND AD1:ExternalGroups EQUALS cisco.local/Users/IT	EQUALS then	BYOD-Finance	Edit 🔻
	~	BYOD IT Research	if	RegisteredDevices AND (Network Access:EapAuthentication EAP-TLS AND AD1:ExternalGroups EQUALS cisco.local/Users/IT	EQUALS then	BYOD-Research	Edt 👻
		BYOD Virtual Desktops	if	(Apple-iPad OR Android) AND AD1:ExternalGroups EQUALS cisco.local/Users/Domain Users	then	BYOD-VDI	Edit 🔻
		Wireless Dot1X	if	Wireless_802.1X	then	PermitAccess	Edit 👻
		Default		no matches, then DenvAccess			Edit 🔻

Procedure 18

Delete wireless 802.1X rule

Now that you have created specific authorization rules, you need to delete the generic, catch-all rule that allowed any provisioned device full network access.

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over **Policy**, and then choose **Authorization**.

Step 2: At the end of the Wireless Dot1X rule, click the black triangle, and then select **Delete**.

Step 3: Verify that you want to delete the rule, click **Delete**, and then click **Save**.



Configure WLC for authorization

Configure every WLC in the environment, with the exception of the guest WLC in the DMZ, with access lists to support these newly defined policies. Each ACL that is referenced by the authorization profiles needs to be defined on the WLC. When the clients on the campus and at remote sites with a local controller connect to the WLC and authenticate, Cisco ISE passes a RADIUS attribute requesting the ACL be applied for this client.

Step 1: In your browser, enter https://wlc1.cisco.local. This takes you to the WLC console.

Step 2: On the menu bar, click Security.

Step 3: In the left pane, expand Access Control Lists, and then click Access Control Lists.

Step 4: Click New.

Step 5: Name the access list, and then click Apply.

Step 6: Click the name in the list. This allows you to edit the newly created access list.

Step 7: Click Add New Rule.

Step 8: Create a new access list rule based on your security policy, and then click **Apply**. Create additional rules to complete the policy. In our example deployment, users in the IT group are prevented from accessing a section of the internal network, but are allowed to access the rest of the internal network and the Internet.

սիսիս								5	Sa <u>v</u> e Configu	ration <u>P</u> ing Lo	gout <u>R</u> efresh
cisco	MONI	for <u>w</u>	LANS <u>C</u> ONTRO	DLLER WIRELES	S <u>S</u> ECURITY	MANAGEMENT	C <u>O</u> MMANDS	HELP <u>F</u> E	EDBACK		
Security	Acce	ss Con	trol Lists > E	dit					< B	ack Add N	iew Rule
AAA General RADIUS	Gene	ral									
Authentication Accounting Fallback	Access List Nam Deny Counters	e IT D									
LDAP Local Net Users	Seq	Action	Source IP/Ma	Destination isk IP/Mask	Protocol	Source Port	Dest Port	DSCP	Direction	Number of Hits	
MAC Filtering Disabled Clients User Login Policies	1	Deny	0.0.0.0	/ 10.4.46.0 255.255.255.	Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	
AP Policies Password Policies	2	Deny	10.4.46.0 255.255.255.0	/ 0.0.0.0	Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	
▶ Local EAP	3	Permit	0.0.0.0	/ 0.0.0.0	Any	Any	Any	Any	Any	0	
 Priority Order Certificate 											

Tech Tip

The access list needs to have entries for the traffic in both directions, so make sure you have pairs of access list rules for both inbound and outbound traffic. Also, there is an implicit "deny all" rule at the end of the access list so any traffic not explicitly permitted is denied.

Step 9: Repeat Step 3 through Step 8 in this procedure for each access list that you defined in the authorization profiles in Cisco ISE.

	MONITOR WLANS CONTROLLER WIRELESS		Sa <u>v</u> e Configuration <u>P</u> ing Logout <u>R</u> efresh IEDBACK
Security	Access Control Lists		New Apply
General RADIUS Authentication	Enable Counters 🗹	Туре	
Accounting	VDI	IPv4	
Fallback TACACS+	Provisioning ACL	IPv4 🔽	
LDAP Local Net Users	Android	IPv4 🖸	
MAC Filtering	<u>II</u>	IPv4 🔽	
Disabled Clients User Login Policies	HR	IPv4 🖸	
AP Policies	Finance	IPv4 🔽	
Password Policies	Research	IPv4 🔽	
Local EAP			

Procedure 20 Provision an Apple iPad

The infrastructure has been configured to support self-provisioning for personally owned Apple iPads.

Step 1: From an iPad, connect to the wireless network by opening Settings, and then choosing the network from the list. Connect using your username and password.

Step 2: Once connected, open Safari and browse to any site.

Step 3: In the Self-Provisioning Portal, enter a description of the device, and then click Register.

CISCO Identity Services Engine 1.1 Self-Provisioning Portal	pat.jones@cisco.local
Device Registration	
This device has not been registered. Please click the Register button to configure your device to use the secure network.	
Device ID 7C:6D:62:DE:05:8F	
Description Pat Jones's Apple iPad	
Register	

Step 4: Click Install. The trusted root certificate from the CA installs.

Cancel	Install Profile	9
- ANNO AND	cisco-AD-CA	
	✓ Trusted	Install
Rece	lived Jun 28, 2012	
Cont	tains Certificate	
More D	etails	>

Step 5: On the warning message that appears, click Install.

Step 6: Click Done. The Safari and the Self-Provisioning Portal displays.

Step 7: Click Register.

Step 8: To install the user certificate, click Install.

ncel	Install Profile	
-	Profile Service Cisco Systems.	
A STATE	♥ Verified	Install
Description	Gather device information.	
Signed	ise-1.cisco.local	
Received	Jun 28, 2012	
Contains	Device enrollment challenge	
More Detail	s	>

Step 9: On the warning message that appears, click **Install Now**. The profile installs.

Step 10: Click Done.

You now need to manually connect to the wireless network using the new profile.

Step 11: On the iPad, open Settings, and then choose Wi-Fi.

Step 12: Next to the network, click the blue arrow, click Forget this Network, and then, on the verification message, click Forget.

Step 13: Return to the wireless settings by clicking Wi-Fi, and then select the network from the list.

Step 14: Click Mode, and then select EAP-TLS.

Step 15: Enter the username, and then click Identity.

Step 16: Choose the profile for the user, and then click **Enter Password**. You are returned to the previous screen.

inter P	assword Identity	-
-	0e9bb19320fba900b492fbd804e016fd0f2824ce Issued by: cisco-AD-CA	٥
	Expires: June 28, 2013	
~	pat.jones Issued by: cisco-AD-CA	\odot
	Expires: June 28, 2013	

Step 17: Click **Join**. You are connected to the network using EAP-TLS and the newly provisioned certificate.

Procedure 21

Provision an Android tablet

The infrastructure has been configured to support self-provisioning for personally owned Google Android tablets.

Step 1: On an Android tablet, connect to the wireless network by opening **Settings**, selecting **Wi-Fi**, and then choosing the network from the list.

Step 2: Open the browser and browse to any site.

Step 3: In the Self-Provisioning Portal, enter a description of the device, and then click **Register**.



Step 4: Choose **Play Store**. The Google Play Store opens, where you can download the Cisco Network Setup Assistant.

Step 5: In the Google Play Store, click **Download**, and then, on the verification window, click **Accept & download**. The Cisco Network Setup Assistant downloads.

Cisco Network Setup Assistant CISCO SYSTEMS, INC.	Accept & download
smartbusinessarchitecture@gmail.com	
PERMISSIONS	
Storage Modify/delete SD card contents	>
System tools Change Wi-Fi state, change network connectivity, change your UI settings	>
Network communication Full Internet access	>
	See all 🐱

Step 6: Run the setup assistant by clicking Open, and then clicking Start.



Step 7: Click OK. The user certificate installs.



Step 8: Click OK. The trusted root certificate installs.

Certificate name	
Certificate name:	
Package contains: One CA certificate	
ОК	Cancel

Step 9: The tablet connects to the network using the new profile.

Step 10: If you need to connect to the network with the new profile manually, open Settings, and then select Wi-Fi.

Step 11: Choose the network from the list, and then click Forget.

Step 12: Select the network from the list. This allows you to configure the options for connecting.

Step 13: For EAP method, select TLS.

Step 14: For CA certificate, select the certificate that was installed in Step 8.

Step 15: For User certificate, select the certificate that was installed in Step 7.

Step 16: Enter the username that matches the certificate for Identity, and then click **Connect**.

EAP method	TLS	4	
Phase 2 authentication	None		
CA certificate	iseca	_	
User certificate	pat.jones	_	
Identity	pat.jones]
Anonymous identity]
Password]
Show password			
Show advanced	options		
Co	nnect		Cancel

Process
Monitoring Network Access
1. View the Cisco ISE dashboard
2. Configure identity groups
3. Add a custom profile
4. Examining the authentication log
5. Create custom authentication reports
6. Identify endpoints
7 Create device-type reports

The configuration of the network infrastructure is complete. Now it's time to answer the what, when, where, and who questions regarding network access by using the reporting functionality of Cisco ISE to gain a better understanding of current activity on the network. Cisco ISE is now configured to authenticate users and to profile endpoints based on RADIUS and DHCP information. The reporting capabilities of Cisco ISE allow you to determine what type of device is connecting to your network, when it connects, and where it connects from. Also, you will know who is connecting to your network and what authentication method was used.

Procedure 1 View the Cisco ISE dashboard

The first place to view this information is on the Cisco ISE home dashboard. It gives a summary view of the health status of the servers in the group, how devices are authenticating, and what types of devices have been profiled.

Step 1: On the menu bar, click Home.

Step 2: If you want to view additional information for a section, click the upper-right corner of that section. The section expands.

etrics	e Endpoints		Active Guest	a Darka	re Compliance		n Time To Remediate	Profiled Endpoints
	B —		Active Guest		9/0 –		.0 sec. –	2 -
dl i laanaa		Ŧ		24h 🔻	24h			24h -
stem Sumn	iary		ď	Identity Stores (PIP)		đ	Authentications	
Name		ation and La	tency 24h =	Name	Authentications 2	24h 🔻	di .	Indiada.
	CPU	Memory	Latency	🔒 Internal Endpoints	diananan.	175		st 24 Hours Last 60 Minutes
ise-1		###01111b		🔁 AD	, II	17	Distribution By:	
ise-2							🗄 Identity Group	
							FI Location	
							Device Type	
thentication	Fallure		ď	Profiled Endpoints		đ	Posture Compliance	
	di .						Passed 0%	
Fotal 9	Last 24 H		ast 60 Minutes	Unique 2	t 24 Hours Last 60 Mi	inutes		
Distribution B	y:			Distribution by:			MTTR 0.0sec	st 24 Hours Last 60 Minutes
± ise-1			2	E PIN	No Data Available		Distribution of Failure by	
				E Profile		3	⊞ os	No Data Available
						_	E Reason	No Data Available
				🗄 Identity Group		2	Eliceason	No Daca Available

Procedure 2

Configure identity groups

Cisco ISE has more in-depth reporting options to give more details on the devices connecting to the network. To identify the endpoints, you can use identity groups to classify profiled endpoints and to generate reports.

The example below describes how to do this for an Apple iPad. The procedure for other types of devices is similar.

Step 1: In the menu bar, mouse over Policy, and then choose Profiling.

Step 2: Click Apple-iPad. This enables you to edit this policy.

Step 3: Select Create Matching Identity Group, and then click Save.

cisco Identity Services Engine			ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Adm	inistration 🔻		😶 Task Navigator 💌 🕗
🛃 Authentication 🛛 🧕 Authorization 🔀	Profiling 💽 Posture 🔂 Cl	ient Provisioning 🔄 Security Group Access	Poicy Elements
Profiling Profiling Profiling Polices Profiling Polices	Polfer Polcy Ld + Apple-IPad Profiler Policy * Name Polcy Enabled * Minnum Certanty Factor * Exception Action * Network Scan (NMAP) Action * Network Scan (NMAP) Action * Network Scan (NMAP) Action * Parent Polcy # Parent Polcy # Rules # Condition Apple-IPadRule # Condition (Apple-IPadRule # Condition (Apple-IPadRule # Stree Reset.	Image: Control of the second	

You can repeat these steps for other endpoint types as needed. You can also investigate the rules used to profile the endpoint to understand the process. In the case of the Apple iPad, Cisco ISE uses two rules. One is based on DHCP information, and the other is based on HTTP.

Procedure 3 Add a custom profile

Although there are many pre-defined profiles, you may find that a device you want to profile doesn't have an existing profile. You can create a new one using unique characteristics of the device. Review some of the existing profiles to get an idea of the options and methods available to you for device profiling.

The example below creates a profile for the Cisco Cius using information obtained from the device's DHCP request.

Step 1: Connect to https://ise-1.cisco.local.

Step 2: Mouse over Policy, and then, from the drop-down menu, choose Profiling.

Step 3: Click Create.

Step 4: Give the policy the name Cisco-Cius and a description.

Step 5: In the rules section, next to Conditions, click the + symbol, and then click Create New Condition (Advance Option).

Step 6: In the Expression list, next to DHCP, click the > symbol, and then select dhcp-class-identifier.



Step 7: In the second list, choose CONTAINS, and then, in the final box, enter Cisco Cius.

Step 8: Choose Certainty Factor Increases, set the value to 20, and then click Submit.

cisco Identity Services Engine	ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Admin	istration 🔻 😐 😌
🛓 Authentication 🛛 🧕 Authorization 🔀	Profiling 👩 Posture 📃 Clent Provisioning 📄 Security Group Access 🦺 Policy Elements
Profiling ↓ ↓ Profiling Polices ↓ ↓ Profiling Polices	Policy Edicy List > New Profiler Policy * Name Cisco-Clus Policy Enabled

Procedure 4

Examining the authentication log

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over **Operations**, and then choose **Authentications**. The authentication log displays. The default option is to display the last 20 records from the last 24 hours.

For devices that authenticated via MAB, the MAC address of the client is listed as the user name and the endpoint. For devices that authenticated via RADIUS over wireless or VPN, the user name is displayed.

If the device was able to be profiled, that information is displayed.

Step 2: In the details column of the MAB record, click the "paper with magnifying glass" icon. This displays detailed authentication information for the record.

In the Authentication Summary section, the network device lists the IP address and the port of the switch that the endpoint is connected to.

📑 📑 👼		Launch Interactive Viewe	er 🖪
RADIUS Authenticatio	on Details		
Showing Pag	e 1 of 1 First	Prev Next Last Goto Page: Go	
AAA Protocol > RAE	IUS Authentication Detail		-
RADIUS Audit Session AAA session ID : Date :	ID : 0A052C0500000001B4B84BC6 ise-1/112681645/20 December 13,2011		
Generated on Decembe	r 13, 2011 1:44:33 PM PST		
		A. P.	
		Actions	7
		Troubleshoot Authentication C* View Diagnostic Messages	
		Audit Network Device Configuration	
		View Network Device Configuration	
		View Server Configuration Changes	
		view Server Conliguration Changes	_
Authentication Summa	ry		
Logged At:	December 13,2011 11:42:30.740 AN	M	
RADIUS Status:	Authentication succeeded		
NAS Failure:			
Jsername:	E8:04:62:EA:83:90		
VAC/IP Address:	E8:04:62:EA:83:90		
	DefaultNetworkDevice : 10.5.44.5 :	GigabitEthemet1/0/1	
Vetwork Device:	Default Network Access		
Network Device: Allowed Protocol:			
Network Device: Allowed Protocol: dentity Store:	PermitAccess		
Network Device: Allowed Protocol: Identity Store: Authorization Profiles: SGA Security Group:	PermitAccess		

You can find additional details, such as the Identity Group and Identity Policy, in the Authentication Details section.

iii 🚔 🗎	Launch	Interactive Viewe
RADIUS Authentication Details		
Showing Page 1 of 1	First Prev Next Last Goto Page: Go	
⊒Authentication Details		
Logged At:	December 13,2011 11:42:30.740 AM	
Occurred At:	December 13,2011 11:42:30.740 AM	
Server:	ise-1	
Authentication Method:	mab	
EAP Authentication Method :	Lookup	
EAP Tunnel Method :		
Username:	E8:04:62: EA:83:90	
RADIUS Username :	E8:04:62:EA:83:90	
Calling Station ID:	E8:04:62:EA:83:90	
Framed IP Address:		
Use Case	Host Lookup	
Network Device:	DefaultNetworkDevice	
Network Device Groups:	Device Type#All Device Types Location#All Locations	
NAS IP Address:	10.5.44.5	
NAS IP Address: NAS Identifier:	10.5.44.5	
NAS Identifier: NAS Port:	84141	
	50101	
NAS Port ID:	GigabitEthernet1/0/1	
NAS Port Type:	Ethernet	
Allowed Protocol:	Default Network Access	
Service Type:	Call Check	
Identity Store:		
Authorization Profiles:	PermitAccess	
Active Directory Domain:		
Identity Group:		
Allowed Protocol Selection Matched R	ule: MAB	
Identity Policy Matched Rule:	Default	
Selected Identity Stores:	Internal Endpoints	
Authorization Policy Matched Rule:	Default	
SGA Security Group:		
AAA Session ID:	ise-1/112681645/20	
Audit Session ID	DAD52CD50DDDD1B4B84BC5	
Tunnel Details:		
	service-type=Call Check	
Cisco-AVPairs:	audit-session-id=0A052C050000001B4B84BC6	
Other Attributes:	ConflyVensionlerBA DestinationPort 1645 Protocol=Radius, Framed-MTU=1500, EAP. Key-Name-CPMSessionD=AdSCSC5000000181884805, EAPIontMAACAdems=E8:04452-EA83-9 Type=Derice Type8411 Device Types_Location=Location#All Locations,Device IP Address=10.5.44 5,Call ID=EC:08.25.759.01	
Posture Status:	NotApplicable	
EPS Status:		

Similar data can be found for endpoints that have authenticated with RADIUS. The user name is displayed in these records as well as the Extensible Authentication Protocol (EAP) method used.

Procedure 5

Create custom authentication reports

The default authentication log view is limited to displaying only the most recent entries. To get in-depth reporting, you need to create a custom report.

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over **Operations**, and then, in the Reports section, choose **Catalog**.

Step 2: In the left pane, select AAA Protocol.

Step 3: Select RADIUS Authentication.

Step 4: Click **Run**. Different time ranges for producing the default report are displayed.

Step 5: If you want to use one of the default time ranges, choose that time range.

cisco Identity Services Engine				ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Adminis	tration 🔻			👓 Task Navigator 👻 😢
Authentications 🛛 🧔 Endpoint Protection Se	rvice	💆 Alarms 📑 Reports 😽	Troubleshoot	
Favorites Shared Catalog System				
Reports a AAA Protocol	AAA	Protocol		
Allowed Protocol	Filte	r. Go	Clear Filter	
Server Instance		Report Name	 Туре 	Modified At
Endpoint	0	AAA Diagnostics	System Report	Mon Feb 27 23:41:09 PST 2012
Failure Reason	0	Authentication Trend	System Report	Mon Feb 27 23:41:09 PST 2012
Network Device	0	RADIUS Accounting	System Report	Mon Feb 27 23:41:09 PST 2012
User	۲	RADIUS Authentication		Mon Feb 27 23:41:09 PST 2012
Security Group Access	Run	- Add To Favorite Delete		Reset Reports
Session Directory		Last 30 Min		
Posture			n Report', hover mouse over f	the 'Report Name' to view the report description.
Endpoint Protection Service			run report for today. n 'Run' button to select addit	ional options.

Step 6: If you want to select a time range that is not listed, choose **Query and Run**. All the parameters available for the report display. After choosing the parameters you want, click **Run** to generate the report.

Figure 2 - RADIUS report parameters

Report			
User:		Select) <u>Clear</u>
MAC Address:		Select) <u>Clear</u>
Identity Group:		Select) <u>Clear</u>
Device Name:		Select) <u>Clear</u>
Device IP:		Select	Clear
Device Group:		Select	Clear
Allowed Protocol:		Select	Clear
Identity Store:		Select	Clear
Server:		Select	Clear
Failure Reason:		Select	Clear
SGASGT:		Select	_ Clear
Show only SGA SGT Assignments:			-
Include SGAEnvironment:			
Radius Audit Session ID:			<u>Clear</u>
Session ID:			<u>Clear</u>
Authentication Status:	Pass Or Fail 👻		
Authentication Method:		Select	Clear
Time Range:	Today 🗸		
Start Date:	(mm/dd/yyyy)		
End Date:	(mm/dd/yyyy)		
Run Cancel			

Procedure 6

Identify endpoints

Using information gleaned from the RADIUS and DHCP requests, Cisco ISE can identify what types of devices are connecting to the network. This can assist in determining the network security policy based on the type of device that is in use.

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over **Operations**, and then, in the Reports section, choose **Catalog**.

Step 2: In the left pane, click **Endpoint**. This displays the available endpoint reports.

Step 3: Select Endpoint Profiler Summary, and then click Run.

Step 4: Select the desired time period to run the report.

🛕 Home Operations 🔻 Policy 🔻 Admini	tration 🔻		🕶 Task Navigator 👻 🕗
🔜 Authentications 🛛 😿 Endpoint Protection Se	rvice 💆 Alarms 🧮 Reports 💊 Troubleshoot		
Favorites Shared Catalog System			
Reports W AAA Protocol	Endpoint		
Allowed Protocol Server Instance	Filter: Go Clear Filter		
	Report Name	Туре	Modified At
u Endpoint	C Endpoint MAC Authentication Summary	System Report	Mon Feb 27 23:41:09 PST 2012
Failure Reason	Endpoint Profiler Summary	System Report	Mon Feb 27 23:41:09 PST 2012
Network Device	C Endpoint Time To Profile	System Report	Mon Feb 27 23:41:09 PST 2012
User	C Top N Authentications By Endpoint Calling Station ID	System Report	Mon Feb 27 23:41:09 PST 2012
Security Group Access	C Top N Authentications By Machine	System Report	Mon Feb 27 23:41:09 PST 2012
Session Directory	Run - Add To Favorite Delete		Reset Reports
Posture	Today		
Endpoint Protection Service	Yesterday s of type 'System Report', hover mouse over t Last 7 days East 30 days eport Name' to run report for today. Query And Run Query And Run		to view the report description.

Step 5: Once the report is generated, you can view the details of a profiled endpoint by clicking the magnifying glass icon.

The details given in the summary section are the MAC address, the endpoint policy, and the identity group for the endpoint. Additional details, such as IP address and network access devices, are available in the Endpoint Details section. For wireless and remote-access VPN endpoints that authenticated with RADIUS, the user name is also listed.

Figure 3 - Endpoint profile summary

Profiler Summary		Pro	filer History
Logged At :	Dec 8, 2011 2:20 PM	Day	Endpoint policy
Server :	ise-1	Dec 8, 2011 2:20 PM	Apple-iPad
Event :	Profiler EndPoint profiling event	Dec 8, 2011 2:20 PM	Apple-iPad
Endpoint MAC Address :	occurred 7C:6D:62:DE:05:8F	Dec 8, 2011 12:11 PM	Apple-Device
Endpoint Policy :	Apple-iPad		
Matched Rule :			
Certainity Metric :	30		
Endpoint Matched Policy :	Apple-iPad		
Endpoint Action Name :			
Identity Group :	Apple-iPad		

Figure 4 - Endpoint Details

Generated on December 13, 2011 1:59:11 PM PST Endpoint Session time : Not Applicable Endpoint Static Assignment : Endpoint Source : Endpoint Source : Endpoint MAD Address : Endpoint POP : Endpoint Property : CPMSessionLP-00424e100000434e1338 StaticAssignment=false NativoAD Centre Source : Endpoint Property : CPMSessionLP-00424e100000434e1338 Calino StaticAssignment=false DestinationPertential Calino StaticAssignment=false DestinationPertential Calino StaticAssignment=false DestinationPertential Calino StaticAssignment=false DestinationPertential Calino StaticAssignment=false DestinationPertential Calino StaticAssignment=false DestinationPertential Calino StaticAssignment=false DestinationPertential Calino StaticAssignment=false Calino	
Endpoint Session time : Not Applicable Endpoint Steve: Endpoint State Assignment : Endpoint State Assignment : Endpoint NAD Address : Endpoint PODN : Endpoint PODN : Endpoint Property : CPMSessiontD=0a042e1100000494e1333 StateAssignment=false NetworkDextcSroug=Device Type#All Device Types Location#All Locations Calling=C	
Endpoint Datails Endpoint Static Assignment : Endpoint Static Assignment : Endpoint OU: Apple, Inc Endpoint OU: Discover : Endpoint Subnet : Endpoint Subnet : Endpoint Subnet : Endpoint NLAN : Endpoint NLAN : Endpoint Property : CPMSessionID=0a042e4100000494ee13338 StaticAsignment=false NetworkDericsForugs=Dwice Type#All Device Types Location#All Locations Calling-Station-1D=7-64622e0569 DestinationPar=1012 Apple.200 StaticAsignment=false Device Type#All Device Type#All Device 13838 Calling-Station-1D=7-64622e0569 DestinationPar=102 Apple.200 StaticAsignment=false Device Type=Perice Type#All Device Types Location#All Locations StaticAsignment=false Device Type=Perice Type#All Device Types Location#All Locations Calling-Station-1D=7-64622e0569 DestinationPar=102 Apple.200 Apple.200 Apple.200 Apple.20 Apple.200 Apple	
Endpoint Static Assignment : Endpoint OUI : Endpoint OUI : Endpoint Static Name : Endpoint Static Name : Endpoint Static Name : Endpoint NLAN : Endpoint NLAN : Endpoint Property : Endpoi	
Endpoint Source : Endpoint MAD Address : Endpoint PDDN : Endpoint PDDN : Endpoint Property : E	
Endpoint NAD Address : Endpoint NAD Address : Endpoint NAD Address : Endpoint NAD Address : Endpoint PDN : Endpoint Property : Endpoint Property : CPMSessionL=0x0424100000494e13838 StaticAssignment=false NetworkDexiceGroup=DeviceType#All Device Types LocationPAll Locations class-a-pair-audit-session-leful2424100000494e13838 DestinationPart=1812 DeviceType=Pranet ServiceType=Pranet NAS-Identifier=VLC2 Time f5Pholl=:25 Last/Brogle=Fall StaticScroupAssignment=false StaticScroupAssignment StaticScroupAssignment StaticScroupAssignment St	
Endpoint Subnet : Endpoint NA Address : 10.4.46.66 Endpoint NA Address : 10.4.46.66 Endpoint Nameserer : Endpoint Property : CPMSessionID=0/a/42e41000000494ee13838 StaticAssignmentFalse NetworkDericeGroups=DericeType#All Device Types Location#All Locations Calling-StaticnD=7c4622.46.05.97 DestinationPort=182 AccSessionID=rc4622.46.05.97 DestinationPort=182 Serie-Type#Firmed NKS-MentfaceVLC-2 TimeToProfile=25 Location#All Locations Sarie-Type#Firmed NKS-MentfaceVLC-2 TimeToProfile=25 Location#All Locations AdvertiseTable Address=123.107.108.109 AdvertiseTable Address=123.107.108.	
Endpoint NAD Address : 10.4.46.65 Endpoint PDDN : Endpoint PDDN : Endpoint PDDPersor : Endpoint Property : En	
Endpoint Property: Endpoint Property: Endpoint Property: Endpoint Property: Endpoint Property: CPMSession1E=04/2424100000494ee13838 StaticAssignment=false NetworkDeviceGroups=DeviceTypesAll Device Types Classical-Balanchet 77:1228184577 gliddert=04.16.6 DeviceType=France ServiceType=France NAS-Identifier=VLC2 Time GFordim=25 LastMinapScan Travel StaticScapAssignment=false Sta	
Endpoint Property : CPMSessionID=0a/42e4100000494ee13838 Endpoint Property : CPMSessionID=0a/42e4100000494ee13838 NetworkDericeGroups=DericeType#All Device Types Location#All Locations Caling-Station/D=7c-6452:4e52-8f DestinationPert=1012 AccSessionID=re=A112816457 DeviceType=Firmed DeviceType=Firmed NKS-Identifier=VLC-2 TimeToProfile=25 Location#All Locations=CAL6056f StaticForgAssignment=Hale dtcp-requested-address=123.107.108.109 Adhentication#AlfAr6XCHAPV2 EspAtiation=CAL605CHAPV2 EspAti	
Endpoint Property : CPMSession/D=04/0244100000434ee13338 StaticAsignmentFielde Device Trypes Device Trypes Locations ¹ LocAtions ¹ LocAtio	
NetworkDeviceGroup=EleviceType#All Device Types Location#All Location=EleviceType#All Device Types Calling=Station#D7-648-62-46-58- DeviceType=France ServiceType=France NAS-Identifier=V112811845/7 gidd=trol_04.16.6 DeviceType=France ServiceType=France NAS-Identifier=VLC2 Time GFortilie=25 LastNinapScan Time-D StaticScanpAsignment=Fision	
Location#All Locations ciscs-a-pair=audit-sestion-id=0.442.4e100000494ee13838 Calling-StationPart=1812 AcsSestionDires-71020154577 gidad=10.4.16 DestinationPart=1812 Series-TypeFiltinged1Dexics Types Series-TypeFiltinged1Dexics Types Series-TypeFiltinged1Dexics Types Series-TypeFiltinged1Dexics Types LastNmapCoanTime=0 dhcp-client-identifie=017.c.645.2de.05.6f StaticCroupAssignmentFildes dhcp-requested-address=128.107.108.109 AuthenticationMinder04KSCHAPV2 EspAuthenticationFACHAPV2 EspA	
Calling-Station/D=7c-6452:d=058f DestinationPort=1812 AcsSession/D=ise-/11/288164577 giadd=10.4.16.6 Device Type=Pranet Service-Type=Pranet TransToProBle=25 LastNmagCanTrme=0 dhcp-client-identifie=01.7c-64.62.de 05.6f Static-TorugAssignment=false dhcp-requested-address=128.10.108.109 Authentic-ationMethod=NCHAPV2 EapAuthentic-ation=MAD+ADA/ADV2 EapAuthentic-ation=MAD+ADA/ADV2 EapAuthentic-ation=MAD+ADA/ADV2 EapAuthentic-ation=MAD+ADA/ADV2 EapAuthentic-ation=MAD+ADA/ADV2 EapAuthentic-ation=MAD+ADA/ADV2 Posture-Serses-matStatus=NAAApDicable Networksesses-128.1001.161.109 Authentic-ationAdVAD+ADV2 Posture-Serses-matStatus=NAAApDicable Posture-Serses-MatStatus=NAAApDicable Posture-Serses-MatStatus=NAAApDicable Posture-Serses-MatStatus=NAAApDicable Posture-Serses-MatStatus=NAAApDicable Posture-Serses-MatStatus=NAAApDicable Posture-Serses-MatStatus=NAAApDicable Posture-Serses-MatStatus=NAAApDicable Posture-Serses-MatStatus=NAAApDicable Posture-Serses-MatStatus=NAAApDicable Posture-Serses-MatStatus=NAAApDicable Posture-Serses-MatStatus=NAAApDicable Posture-Serses-MatStatus=NAAADD-ADA Posture-Serses-MatStatus=NAAADD-ADA Posture-Serses-MatStatu	
DestinationPort1812 AcsSessionID=ise-11128018457 giadd=10.4.16.6 Device Type=Device Type#All Device Types Sarice-Type=Framed NAS-Identifier=WLC-2 Time10Fr08t=25 LastNmg2conTime0-17.5.64.52.64.05.81 dhcp-rotent.identigment=folio dhcp-rotent.identigment=folio dhcp-rotent.identigment=folio dhcp-rotent.identigment=folio dhcp-rotent.identigment=folio dhcp-rotent.identigment=folio dhcp-rotent.identigment=folio dhcp-rotent.identigment=folio dhcp-rotent.identigment=folio dhcp-rotent.identigment=folio dhcp-rotent.identigment=folio dhcp-rotent.identigment=folio dhcp-rotent.identigment=folio dhcp-rotent.identigment=folio dhcp-rotent.identigment=folio clade=0.01 Authentication=DistantExture=NotApplicable (identifyGroupD=3e78:de0-216-11e1-aebd-000056:a90008 User-Name=pagiones clade=0.00 AuthenticationefitifyStore=AD1 dhcp-parameter-roguest-list=1 3 5 15	
giadd=10.4.16.6 Device Type=Device Type#All Device Types Service-Type=Framed NAS-Identifier=VLC-2 Time ToProfile=25 LastNmsGcanTime=017-5.64.62.64.05.81 Statc-Device-Tista 107.108.100 Aduptional-Service=Tista 107.108.100 Authenticatione=FAMSCHAPV2 Espachanterista 108.70.97.04.00 NetworkDeviceName=DefaultHetworkDevice NAS-Per-Type=Vintees - IEEE 802.11 op=BOOTHEDUEST PostureAssessmentStatus=NotApplicable IdentifyGroupD=2e75490-214b-11e1-seb4000056.se0008 User-Name=paignes ciadd=0.0.0 Authenticatione=AD1 disperimentStatus=NotApplicable Ciadd=0.0.0 Authenticatione=AD1 disperimentStatus=NotApplicable Second 1.5 Second 1.5 S	
Device Type=Frame Service: Type=Frame NAS-Identifier=VLC-2 Time T6Polise=25 Last/ImapCan114m0 State/SroupAsignment=failus dhcp-requested-address=128.107.108.109 Authentic adioMSCHAPV2 EapAuthentic adioMSCHAPV2 EapAuthentic adioMSCHAPV2 EapAuthentic adioMSCHAPV2 NetworkDevice Name=DealutHetworkDevice NAS-Port.Type=Vinites= - IEEE 802.11 or=E00/TE/0UEST Pre-E014E0UEST Pre-E014E0UEST Pre-E014E0UEST Pre-E014E0UEST Pre-E014E0UEST Calde=0.0.0 Authentic adioMethod Store=AD1 dhcp-samete=request-list=1 3 5	
Service-Type=Franced NAS-Identifier=WLC-2 Time ToProfile=25 LastNmspCcanTime=017;Edb E2: de 05: 61 Static-SougA-signment=Files dhcp-requests e siddles=7: 02: 108: 109 dhcp-requests e siddles=7: 02: 109; 109 E gabuthantication=EAP-MSCHAP/2 NetworkDericeName=DefaultHerworkDerice NAS-Pen-Type=Writes=8: IEEE 802: 11 op=50:0THE:0DUEST Posture-AssessmentStatus=NotApplicable Identify GroupD=2e78:e02:116: 116: aebd-000056:s80008 ToTal Certainty Factor=03 User-Name=paignes c:add=0.0.0 Authentic ation/dentifyStore=AD1 dfcp-pairameter-request-Ist=1 3 5 5	
Time ToP roll=25 LastNmap Can Time 0 dhcp-client-identifier=017.7.64 62.04 05.61 Static/coupAssignment=flate dhcp-requested-address=128.107.108.109 AuthenticationMethod=NKOS/LAPV2 E NebwohD spiceTelement=DefaultHenvoR Derice NKS-Port-Type=Winters = IEEE 802.11 op=50/OTFE/DUEST PostureAssessmentStatus=NotApplicable Identify/GroupD=2e75490-21tb-11e1-aeb6-005056;s00008 User-Name=pationes ciadd=0.0.0 AuthenticationBittistor=AD1 dhcp-parameter-request-list=1 3 5 5	
LastNmapCcanTime=0 dhcpcliner)dentifiere017.r5dbf2.de05501 StaticGroupAssignment=false dhcprequested=address=123.107.108.109 Authentication=AMSCHAPV2 EspAuthentication=CPA-MSCHAPV2 NetworkDericeName=DefaultNetworkDerice NAS-PortType=V/mises = IEEE 802.111 op=B0C0TRE0UEST PostureAssessmentStatus=NotApplicable IdentifyGroupD=2478a80-216-1161-aeb6005056a90008 Total Centanty Factor=030 UserName=pagnoes ciadd=0.000 Authentication=030 State=0.001	
Static GroupAssignment=false dhcp-requested=addese=128 107.108.109 Authentic atione=DAMSCHAPV2 EspAuhamicis atione=DAMSCHAPV2 NetworkDeviceName=DefaultNetworkDevice NAS=PorType=Vintees = IEEE 802.111 op=B0C0TREOUEST PostureAssessmentStatus=NotApplicable IdentifyGroupD=2e78/a00-216-1161-aeb6005056a90008 Total Centamy Factor=030 User-Name=pationes ciade=0.0.0 Authentic ationdentifyStore=AD1 dfcp=paramete-request-is=1 3 5 15 19	
dhcprequested-aiddress=128.107.108.109 Authentic atiom/MEND-MSCHAPV2 EspAuthentic atiom/EAD-MSCHAPV2 Network/DericeName=DataUtHetwork/Derice NAS-Pron.Type=Vrietaus=102.11 PostureNasessment Status=NotApplicable IdentifyGroupD=3e78400-210b-11e1-aebd-005056a90008 IdentifyGroupD=3e78400-210b-11e1-aebd-005056a90008 User-Name=pagiones ciadd=0.0.0 Authentic ation/dentifyStore=AD1 dhcp samates-reguest-list=1 3 5 15 19	
EapAuthentic atom=EAP-MSCHAP/2 Network Device Name=DeataWetworkDevice NAS-Pon-Type=Vrimites - IEEE 002.11 Posture Assessment Statute=NotApplicable IdentifyGroupD=ar76400-216-11e1-aebd-005056a00008 User-Name=pationes ciadd=0.0.0 Authentic ationaldentifyStore=AD1 dhcp-parameter-request-list=1 3 5 5 19	
NetworkDeviceName=DofaultHetworkDevice NKS-PorType=Vinites - IEEE 802.11 op=B0OTREOUEST PostureAssessmentStatus=NotApplicable IdentityGroupD=Set78id0-216-1161-aeb6005056a90008 Total Centamty Factor=30 User-Name=pagnoise ciade=0.0.0 Authentic ationolientityStore=AD1 dtcp=Samanete-request-list=1 3 5 15 19 252	
op=BOOTREOUEST PostureAssessmentStatus=NotApplicable IdentityGroupD=2e7890-21t6-11e1-seb4000056s80008 Total Certainty Factor=30 User-Name=pagiones ciadd=0.0.0 Authentic ationidentityStore=AD1 dtcp-parameter-reguest-list=1 3 5 15 19 252	
PostureAssessmentStatus=Nu6Applicable IdentityGroupDe3e784020210b-116-1a-ebd-005056a90008 Total Certainty Facto=30 User-Name=patjones ciadd=0.0.0.0 Authentic ationidentityStore=AD1 dhcp-parameter-request-list=1 3 5 15 15 15 252	
Total Certainty Facto=30 UserName=paignes ciadd=0.0.0.0 Authentic ationidentity(Store=AD1 dhcp-parameter-request-list=1 3 5 15 15 19 252	
UserName=pagnores ciadd=0.0.0 Authentic attondientityStore=AD1 dtcp-parameter-request-list=1 3 5 5 5 119 252	
ciadd=0.0.0.0 Authentic ationidentityStore=AD1 dhcp-parameter-request-list=1 3 6 15 15 19 252	
dhcpparameter-request-list=1 3 6 15 119 252	
3 * * * * * 6 * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	
15 119 252	
119 252	
MatchedPolicyID=17679880-116b-11e1-ae1c-0050569e2146	
DestinationIPAddress=10.4.48.41	
NAS-Port=13 ADDomain=cisco.local	
NmapScanCount=0	
dhop-message-type=DHCPDISCOVER htype≔Ethemet (10Mb)	
EndPointMACAddress=7C-6D-62-DE-05-8F	
ServiceSelectionMatchedRule=Wireless-Dot1X	
PortalUser= EndPointMatchedProfile=Apple-Device	
RequestLatency=9	
EapTunnel=PEAP AuthState=Authenticated	
Airespace-Wlan-Id=1	
hlen=6 hops=2	
host-name=SBA-iPad	
FirstCollection=1323375086686 EndPointPolicyID=17679880-116b-11e1-ae1c-00505659e2146	
SelectedAccessService=Default Network Access	
secs=0 AuthorizationPolicyMatchedRule=Default	
IdentityPolicyMatchedRule=Default	
MessageCode=5200 DeviceRegistrationStatus=0	
SelectedAuthorizationProfiles=PermitAccess	
IdentityAccessRestricted=false SelectedAuthenticationIdentityStores=AD1	
flags=0x0000	
chaddr=7c:6d:62:de:05:8f	
yiaddr=0.0.0.0 Response=(User-Name=pationes; State=ReauthSession:0a042e41000000494ee13838;	
Class=CACS:0a042e41000000494ee13838;ise-1/112681645/7; Termination-Action=RADIUS-Request; MS-MPP	5
Send-Key=49.7c:10:b6.89.6b:18:b0:d1:91:ca.89.44:25:3a.8f;fb:ef;85:7c:45:96:3d:59:1b:5f;a3:67:d4:d2:2e:10; MS-MPPE-	
Recv-Key=c9:0b:04:f8:4e:9b:24:a8:9e:c1:5f:38:65:fc:e3:7d:eb:0a:5e:40:46:24:1b:aa:ee:0a:d7:4c:b4:fa:96:51; }	
Location=Location#All Locations PolicyVersion=1	
Device IP Address=10.4.46.65	
NmapSubnetScanID=0 Called-Station-ID=1c-17-d3-cb-48-50:WLAN-Data	
Called-Station-ID=1C-17+03-00-40-00, YVDAN4-Data	

Create device-type reports

You can create reports to identify specific devices based on the identity groups configured previously. This example uses the group created to identify Apple iPads.

Step 1: On the menu bar, mouse over **Operations**, and then, in the Reports section, choose **Catalog**.

Step 2: In the left pane, click AAA Protocol.

Step 3: Select RADIUS Authentication.

Step 4: Click Run, and then choose Query and Run.

Identity Services Engine A Home Operations Policy Admin	ristration 👻		ise-1 admin Logout Feedback
Authentications Record Protection S Favorites Shared Catalog System	Service 💆 Alarms 📑 Reports 🍾	Troubleshoot	
Reports AAA Protocol Alowed Protocol	AAA Protocol	ClearFilter	
Server Instance Endpoint Failure Reason Network Device	Report Name C AAA Diagnostics C Authentication Trend C RADIUS Accounting	Type System Report System Report System Report	Modified At Mon Feb 27 23:41:09 PST 2012 Mon Feb 27 23:41:09 PST 2012 Mon Feb 27 23:41:09 PST 2012
User User Security Group Access Session Directory Proture	Run Add To Favorite Delete Last 30 Min Last Hour s of type "System	System Report	Mon Feb 27 23:41:09 PBT 2012 Reset Reports the 'Report Name' to view the report description.
Endpoint Protection Service	Last 12 Hours eport Name' to n	un report for today. n 'Run' button to select addit	

Step 5: For the identity group you want to query, next the Identity Group field, click **Select**. A search window appears.

Step 6: Leave the search field empty, and then click **Select**. The search returns all groups.

Step 7: Select the group Profiled: AppleiPad, and then click Apply.

Search				~
				Č ∰
Search	Filter:		Search	
	Criteria			
0	Blacklist			_
0	Guest			
0	Profiled			
0	Profiled:Android			
۲	Profiled:Apple-iPad			
0	Profiled:Apple-iPhone			T
		Apply Cancel		
1	Select Identity Groups			

Step 8: Select a time range for the report, and then click **Run.** The report generates.

Figure 5 - Sample report

Showing Page	1 of 1					Goto Page:	Go		
AAA Protocol > RAD	IUS Authen	tication							
Identity Group : Authentication Status : Date :	Pass or Fail		mbor 12 2011 / L	ed 30 Minute					
		2011 0000	111061 12,2011 (<u>La</u>	ast 50 minute	s Last Hour Last 12	Hours Today Yesterday L	ast / Days L	ast 30 Days)	
Generated on Decembe				ist au minute	s Last Hour Last 12	Hours loday Yesterday L	ast / Days L	ast 30 Days)	
	er 13, 2011 2:28	8:15 PM PS	•			Hours loday Yesterday L	ast / Days L	ast 30 Days)	
Generated on Decembe ✓=Pass ×=Fail ④ Logged At	er 13, 2011 2:28	tails RM PS	louse over item fo		information MAC/IP		<u>ast / Days</u> Li Service Type	Authentication Method	Authentication Protocol

Appendix A: Product List

Network Management

Functional Area	Product Description	Part Numbers	Software
Identity Management	Identity Services Engine Virtual Appliance	ISE-VM-K9=	1.1.1.268
	Cisco ISE Wireless 5-year License for 2500 Endpoints	LS-ISE-AD5Y-W-2500=	
	Cisco ISE Wireless 5-year License for 1000 Endpoints	LS- ISE- AD5Y-W-1K=	
	Cisco ISE Wireless 5-year License for 500 Endpoints	LS-ISE-AD5Y-W-500=	
	Cisco ISE Wireless 5-year License for 250 Endpoints	LS-ISE-AD5Y-W-250=	
	Cisco ISE Wireless 5-year License for 100 Endpoints	LS-ISE-AD5Y-W-100=	

Wireless LAN Controllers

Functional Area	Product Description	Part Numbers	Software
On Site, Remote Site, or Guest Controller	Cisco 5500 Series Wireless Controller for up to 500 Cisco access points	AIR-CT5508-500-K9	7.2.110.0
	Cisco 5500 Series Wireless Controller for up to 250 Cisco access points	AIR-CT5508-250-K9	
	Cisco 5500 Series Wireless Controller for up to 100 Cisco access points	AIR-CT5508-100-K9	
	Cisco 5500 Series Wireless Controller for up to 50 Cisco access points	AIR-CT5508-50-K9	
	Cisco 5500 Series Wireless Controller for up to 25 Cisco access points	AIR-CT5508-25-K9	
	Cisco 5500 Series Wireless Controller for up to 12 Cisco access points	AIR-CT5508-12-K9	
On Site Controller	Cisco 2500 Series Wireless Controller for up to 50 Cisco access points	AIR-CT2504-50-K9	7.2.110.0
	Cisco 2500 Series Wireless Controller for up to 25 Cisco access points	AIR-CT2504-25-K9	
	Cisco 2500 Series Wireless Controller for up to 15 Cisco access points	AIR-CT2504-15-K9	
	Cisco 2500 Series Wireless Controller for up to 5 Cisco access points	AIR-CT2504-5-K9	

Feedback

Click here to provide feedback to Cisco SBA.



SMART BUSINESS ARCHITECTURE

ALL DESIGNS, SPECIFICATIONS, STATEMENTS, INFORMATION, AND RECOMMENDATIONS (COLLECTIVELY, "DESIGNS") IN THIS MANUAL ARE PRESENTED "AS IS," WITH ALL FAULTS. CISCO AND ITS SUPPLIERS DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, WITH-OUT LIMITATION, THE WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT OR ARISING FROM A COURSE OF DEALING, USAGE, OR TRADE PRACTICE. IN NO EVENT SHALL CISCO OR ITS SUPPLIERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOST PROFITS OR DAMAGE TO DATA ARISING OUT OF THE USE OR INABILITY OF USE THE DESIGNS, EVEN OR ITS SUPPLIERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOST PROFITS OR LOSS OR DAMAGE TO DATA ARISING OUT OF THE USE OR INABILITY OF USE THE DESIGNS, EVEN IF CISCO OR ITS SUPPLIERS HAVE BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. THE DESIGNS ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE WITHOUT NOTICE. USERS ARE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR THEIR APPLICATION OF THE DESIGNS ON ON TO CONSTITUTE THE TECHNICAL OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVICE OF CISCO, ITS SUPPLIERS OR PARTNERS. USERS SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN TECHNICAL ADVISORS BEFORE IMPLEMENTING THE DESIGNS. RESULTS MAY VARY DEPENDING ON FACTORS NOT TESTED BY CISCO.

Any Internet Protocol (IP) addresses used in this document are not intended to be actual addresses. Any examples, command display output, and figures included in the document are shown for illustrative purposes only. Any use of actual IP addresses in illustrative content is unintentional and coincidental.

© 2012 Cisco Systems, Inc. All rights reserved.



Americas Headquarters Cisco Systems, Inc. San Jose, CA Asia Pacific Headquarters Cisco Systems (USA) Pte. Ltd. Singapore Europe Headquarters Cisco Systems International BV Amsterdam, The Netherlands

Cisco has more than 200 offices worldwide. Addresses, phone numbers, and fax numbers are listed on the Cisco Website at www.cisco.com/go/offices.

Cisco and the Cisco logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Cisco and/or its affiliates in the U.S. and other countries. To view a list of Cisco trademarks, go to this URL: www.cisco.com/go/trademarks. Third-party trademarks mentioned are the property of their respective owners. The use of the word partner does not imply a partnership relationship between Cisco and any other company. (1110R)